
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

JULY 13, 2015 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted By 

The City Manager 

 

 

 

 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov




 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your agenda.  Also included are suggested 
or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and 
possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 

GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 

 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 

 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 

 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 

 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 
 
 
 
 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

July 13, 2015 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pat Rowland – Woodside Bible Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Presentation to Recognize Dr. Martin Wunsch Who Donated $50,000 to the Troy 
Public Library on Behalf of the Estate of Lucille Makarov.  The Funds Will Be 
Used to Make Improvements in Furnishings and Technology in the Youth Services 
Area, the Teen Services Area, and the Adult Services Collection (Presented by:  
Cathy Russ, Library Director) 1 

C-2 Presentation to Sue Martin, President of the Friends of the Troy Public Library, in 
Recognition of Funding in the Amount of $111,525 for the 2015-16 Fiscal Year.  
The Funding will go Toward Library Programs, Purchasing New Meeting Room 
Furniture, a Mobile Computer Lab, and Other Aesthetic Improvements (Presented 
by:  Cathy Russ, Library Director) 1 

C-3 Fireworks Report (Presented by:  Gary Mayer, Chief of Police) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Carryover Items 2 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 No Public Hearings 2 



F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 

AND BUSINESSES: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 No Postponed Items 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority, Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA); b) City 
Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic District Commission, 
Traffic Committee 4 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 10 

I-4 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2015-2018 
(Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director) 10 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 10 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 10 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 11 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 11 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 22, 2015 ......................................... 11 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 11 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 11 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contract Award – Two (2) 
Dump Trucks with Snow Removal and Deicing Systems ................................... 11 



J-5 Resolution to Schedule a Special Study Session on Monday, August 10, 2015, to 
Discuss the Great Lakes Water Authority 11 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 12 

a) July 20, 2015 – Rezoning Application – File ZOTA Z 746 – Proposed Troy 
Fire Station No. 4, North Side of Maple, East of John R (2103 and 2121E. 
Maple), Section 25 from R-1E (One Family Residential) District to NN ‘C’ 
(Neighborhood Node ‘C’) .................................................................................... 12 

b) July 20, 2015 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – File ZOTA 247 – Oil & 
Gas Extraction .................................................................................................... 12 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 12 

a) Timeline for Library Millage Question – November 3, 2015 City General 
Election ............................................................................................................... 12 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 12 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 12 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 12 

N-1  No Council Referrals 12 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 12 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 12 

P. REPORTS: 12 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 12 

a) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-June 3, 2015 .......................................... 12 

b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-June 3, 2015 .......................................... 12 
c) Planning Commission-Final-June 9, 2015 .......................................................... 12 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – July 1, 2015 ........................................ 12 

P-2 Department Reports: 12 

a) Building Department Activity Report – June 2015 .............................................. 12 



b) Great Lakes Water Authority Update ................................................................. 12 

c) 2015 Second Quarter Litigation Report .............................................................. 12 
d) Cities of Southfield and Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority, 

Certified Technology Park; Amended, Restated and Extended Development 
and Tax Increment Financing Plan:  Update ...................................................... 12 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) To Kurt Bovensiep from the Schoenherr Family Regarding Staff Rescuing a 
Mallard Duck Family ........................................................................................... 13 

b) To Chief Mayer from Stephanie Bergeron, President of Walsh College, 
Regarding Officer Assistance with Traffic Control at the Commencement 
Ceremonies Held at Zion Christian Church ........................................................ 13 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 13 

P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Customers of DTE Electric Co. Case No. U-17772 – 
Biennial Review of the Energy Optimization Plan 13 

P-6 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 
Case No. U-17868 – Application to Approve a Refund to its Natural Gas 
Customers 13 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 

THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 

TROY BUSINESSES): 13 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 13 

R-1 No Closed Session 13 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 13 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 14 

PROPOSED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND STUDY SESSIONS: 14 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 14 

July 20, 2015 at 6:00 PM Review the Public Opinion Survey and inTeracTionTroy ......... 14 

2015 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 14 

July 20, 2015 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 14 
August 10, 2015 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 14 
August 24, 2015 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 14 



September 14, 2015 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 14 

September 28, 2015 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 14 
October 12, 2015 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 14 

October 26, 2015 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 14 
November 9, 2015 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 14 
November 23, 2015 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 14 
December 7, 2015 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 14 

December 14, 2015 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 14 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pat Rowland – Woodside Bible Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Steve Gottlieb 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of ______________ at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of July 13, 2015, due to _________________. 
 
Yes:       
No:       

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Presentation to Recognize Dr. Martin Wunsch Who Donated $50,000 to the Troy 

Public Library on Behalf of the Estate of Lucille Makarov.  The Funds Will Be Used 

to Make Improvements in Furnishings and Technology in the Youth Services Area, 

the Teen Services Area, and the Adult Services Collection (Presented by:  Cathy 
Russ, Library Director) 

 

C-2 Presentation to Sue Martin, President of the Friends of the Troy Public Library, in 

Recognition of Funding in the Amount of $111,525 for the 2015-16 Fiscal Year.  

The Funding will go Toward Library Programs, Purchasing New Meeting Room 

Furniture, a Mobile Computer Lab, and Other Aesthetic Improvements (Presented 
by:  Cathy Russ, Library Director) 

 

C-3 Fireworks Report (Presented by:  Gary Mayer, Chief of Police) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 2 - 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 

the Public and Visitors: 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the 
Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy 
Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the 
Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

 All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If 
the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 3 - 

The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required 
to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the 
meeting. There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, 
Troy Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.  
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 4 - 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018 Thomas Desmond 

 Term currently held by: Thomas Desmond 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018 Glenn Clark 

 Term currently held by: Glenn Clark 
   

Yes:  
No:  
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority, Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA); b) City 

Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic District Commission, 

Traffic Committee 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 2 Notes 3 
 

Dziurman Theodore 5/7/2017 4/30/2015 BCBA exp 1/1/2020 NO Reappointment  

Kerwin Mary 1/16/2017 4/30/2017    

Kornacki Rosemary 12/12/2015 4/30/2017    

Swartz Robert D. 12/16/2017 4/30/2017    

Vacancy   4/30/2016 
Bruce Wilberding’s 
unexpired term. 

 
 

Vassallo Joseph J. 5/7/2017 4/30/2018    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 5 - 

Nominations to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy – Bruce Wilberding’s 

unexpired term (resigned 4/11/2014) 
  

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: Theodore Dziurman 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Salgat Charles 5/20/2017  
 

 
 

Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor 
5 Regular Members 

Staggered 4 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 3 

Beltramini Robin 4/4/2016 6/30/2018 Resident Member  

Hodorek Ellen  11/13/2017   

Hoef Paul V. 5/1/2017 6/30/2015 Resident Member Requests 
Reappointment 

Kidder Michael 1/13/2009 6/30/2015 Member  

Sharp John 7/15/2013 6/30/2016 Resident Member  

Shields David 6/14/2014 6/30/2016 Member  

Slater Dane  11/9/2015 Alternate  

Spanos Irene     

Vitale Nickolas 4/27/2017 6/30/2015 Resident Member Requests 
Reappointment 

 

 

Nominations to the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA): 
 

Term Expires:  6/30/2019  (Resident Member) 

 Term currently held by: Paul V. Hoef 
 

Term Expires:  6/30/2019  (Member) 

 Term currently held by: Michael Kidder 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 6 - 

Term Expires:  6/30/2019  (Resident Member) 

 Term currently held by: Nickolas Vitale 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Mccown Paul D. 7/10/2015  

Schick Michael 1/13/2017  

Sinutko Jaime 8/5/2016  
 

 
Yes:  
No:  
 

b) City Council Nominations:  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 

Berk Robert 2/27/2015 4/30/2016  

Bernardi Maryann 11/18/2013 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 

Bliss Daniel 11/16/2013 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 

Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014 4/30/2017  

Kanoza Shirley 2/21/2015 4/30/2016  

Weisgerber William 11/17/2013 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 

Wilsher Cynthia 2/27/2016 4/30/2017  
 

 

Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: Maryann Bernardi 

  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 7 - 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: Daniel Bliss 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: William Weisgerber 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applicants on file. 

 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last 
Name 

First 
Name 

App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 2 Notes 3 

Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2017   

McCown Paul 7/10/2015 3/1/2017 ZBA (ALT) exp 1/31/2018  

McGee Timothy 8/13/2014 5/15/2015  Requests 
Reappointment 

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 3/1/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2015; 
Traffic Comm. exp 
1/31/2017 

 

Schuchter Doris 11/22/2013 5/15/2015 Historical Society 
Recommendation 

NO 
Reappointment 

Talarico Paula 1/8/2017 3/1/2018   

Voigt W. Kent 1/23/2015 3/1/2016   
 

 

Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 

Term Expires:  5/15/2018  

 Term currently held by: Doris Schuchter 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Adams John 12/19/2016  

Huber Laurie 6/10/2017 P&R Bd. exp 9/30/2015 

Salgat Charles 5/20/2017  
 

 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 8 - 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 3 

Comiskey Ann M. 3/18/2016 1/31/2018   

Ehlert Max K. 11/5/2016 1/31/2018   

Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2017   

Gorcyca David 12/6/2015 1/31/2017   

Hall Patrick C. 12/12/2014 1/31/2016   

Huber Robert M. 8/26/2016 7/31/2015 STUDENT Graduated 2015 

Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 1/31/2016   

Oberski Jeff     

Payne Timothy P. 2/8/2014 1/31/2018   
 

 

Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee 
 

Term Expires:  7/31/2016  STUDENT 

 Term currently held by: Robert Huber (Student) 
 

Interested Applicants: 
 

 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School Board Member: 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 

Baker Julia (Judy) 5/7/2015 9/30/2016  

Bluhm David 6/2/2016 7/31/2015 STUDENT 

Bo Elaine    

Hauff Gary 2/6/2014 7/31/2015 Troy School Dist. Rep. on P&R Board 

Huber Laurie 2/8/2014 9/30/2015  

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 1/20/2014 9/30/2015  

McGee Timothy 8/13/2014 9/30/2017  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 9 - 

Slifkin Elizabeth 3/24/2017 7/31/2016 STUDENT 

Stewart Jeffrey 6/27/2015 9/30/2016  

Toth Steve 10/3/2013 9/30/2016  

Zikakis Janice 10/15/2016 9/30/2017  
 

 

Nominations to theTraffic Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  7/31/2016  Troy School Dist. Rep. 

 Term currently held by: Gary Hauff, Troy School Board Member 
 
 

Term Expires:  7/31/2016  STUDENT 

 Term currently held by: David Bluhm 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 2 

Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016  Traffic Comm. exp 1/31/2018 

Brikho Frencheska 3/23/2017 STUDENT Planning Comm. exp 7/31/2016 

Regan Kathleen 3/26/2017 STUDENT Traffic Comm. exp 7/31/2016 

Salgat Charles 5/20/2017   

Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016   
 

 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 

Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016 1/31/2018  

Easterbrook David 12/2/2015 1/31/2016 Stevan Popovic's unexpired term 

Huotari William   Ex-Officio Member 

Kilmer Richard 12/12/2015 1/31/2017  

Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio Member 

Nelson William   Ex-Officio Member 

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 1/31/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2015 

Regan Kathleen 3/26/2017 7/31/2015 Student 

Vacancy   1/31/2016 O. Apahidean resigned 2/13/15  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 10 - 

Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016 1/31/2018  

Ziegenfelder Peter 12/9/2015 1/31/2017  
 

 

Nominations to theTraffic Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2016  

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy (O. Apahidean resigned 

2/13/15) 
   

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 

Huber Robert 6/10/2017   
 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 

I-4 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2015-2018 
(Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That a collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and the Michigan 
Association of Police (MAP) for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 is hereby 

RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 

AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement. 
 
Yes:       
No:       

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 11 - 

Yes:       
No:       
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 22, 2015 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contract Award – Two (2) Dump 

Trucks with Snow Removal and Deicing Systems 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES contracts to purchase two (2) tandem 
axle truck chassis, for $99,679.00 each to Wolverine Freightliner-Eastside, Inc., of Mount 
Clemens, MI for an estimated total price of $199,358.00 and two (2) dump bodies, snow 
removal and deicing systems for $104,238.68 each from Truck and Trailer Specialties, Inc., of 
Dutton, MI for an estimated total price of $208,477.36; for an estimated grand total cost of 
$407,835.36. 
 

J-5 Resolution to Schedule a Special Study Session on Monday, August 10, 2015, to 

Discuss the Great Lakes Water Authority 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-07-      
 

RESOLVED, That a Special Study meeting is SCHEDULED for the Troy City Council for the 
purpose of discussing the Great Lakes Water Authority on Monday, August 10, 2015 at 6:00 
PM in the Council Boardroom at 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 12 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   

a) July 20, 2015 – Rezoning Application – File ZOTA Z 746 – Proposed Troy Fire Station 
No. 4, North Side of Maple, East of John R (2103 and 2121E. Maple), Section 25 from 
R-1E (One Family Residential) District to NN ‘C’ (Neighborhood Node ‘C’) 

b) July 20, 2015 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – File ZOTA 247 – Oil & Gas 
Extraction  

 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):   

a) Timeline for Library Millage Question – November 3, 2015 City General Election 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals  

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 

P. REPORTS: 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-June 3, 2015 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-June 3, 2015 
c) Planning Commission-Final-June 9, 2015 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – July 1, 2015 
 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department Activity Report – June 2015 
b) Great Lakes Water Authority Update 
c) 2015 Second Quarter Litigation Report 
d) Cities of Southfield and Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority, Certified 

Technology Park; Amended, Restated and Extended Development and Tax Increment 
Financing Plan:  Update  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 13 - 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Kurt Bovensiep from the Schoenherr Family Regarding Staff Rescuing a Mallard 

Duck Family 
b) To Chief Mayer from Stephanie Bergeron, President of Walsh College, Regarding 

Officer Assistance with Traffic Control at the Commencement Ceremonies Held at Zion 
Christian Church 

 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Customers of DTE Electric Co. Case No. U-17772 – 

Biennial Review of the Energy Optimization Plan 
 

P-6 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 

Case No. U-17868 – Application to Approve a Refund to its Natural Gas Customers 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 13, 2015 

 

- 14 - 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 

 
 

PROPOSED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND STUDY SESSIONS: 
 

 
 
 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
July 20, 2015 at 6:00 PM .................... Review the Public Opinion Survey and inTeracTionTroy 

 
 
 
 

2015 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
July 20, 2015 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

August 10, 2015 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 24, 2015 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 14, 2015 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 28, 2015 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

October 12, 2015.............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

October 26, 2015.............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

November 9, 2015 ............................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

November 23, 2015 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 7, 2015 ............................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2015 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 



stewartc
Text Box
C-03























 

 

G: Correspondence/Menig – Agenda Item MAP ratification 2015-07 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Date:  July 8, 2015 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director 
    
 
Subject: Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2015-2018  

(Introduced by Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director) 
 
 

History 
The Michigan Association of Police (MAP) represents the City of Troy’s clerical and non-sworn police 
personnel.  The City of Troy and MAP recently reached a tentative agreement for a three-year successor 
collective bargaining agreement to replace the contract that expired June 30, 2015. 

 
 
Financial 
As seen in the attached Tentative Agreement Summary, this agreement provides for a wage increase, an 
increase in shift premium rates and an increase in the City’s percent contribution to the employees’ 
Defined Contribution retirement accounts.  Additionally, a tuition reimbursement plan was reinstated. 
 
The City will realize savings from the elimination of double time paid on an employee’s seventh 
consecutive work day and will have potential future savings from the elimination of a $400 minimum 
responsibility for health care premiums in retirement (for those employees who qualify). 
 
We are pleased that the union recognized the unpredictability of future health care taxes and agreed to 
include a re-opener on health care, if needed, to address issues related to the “Cadillac tax” which could 
impact the City in 2018. 

 
 
Recommendation 
City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement between the City of 
Troy and MAP for a three-year collective bargaining agreement for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 
2018. 
 
A summary of the tentative agreement and the resulting contract language changes are attached. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  

stewartc
Text Box
I-04



G:Negotiations/MAP/ 2015/TA Summary w Changes compared to previous 2015-07 

 

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and MAP 

2015-2018 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
(With Side-by-side Comparison where applicable) 

   
ISSUE CURRENT  TENTATIVE AGREEMENT 
 
Contact Duration 

   
Three years 

 

     
 
Wages 

   
Upon ratification 
July 1, 2016 
July 1, 2017 
 

 
2%  
1% plus $400 lump sum 
1% plus $400 lump sum 
 

     
Retirement Employer Contribution to DC:  

Employees hired 12/21/98 – 2/6/05    8% 
Employees hired on/after 2/7/05         7% 

Employer Contribution to DC:  
Employees hired on/after 12/21/98       8.25% 
 
 

   
Health Insurance in 
Retirement 

In retirement employee receives % of health 
insurance premium paid by the City (as 
computed based on years of service to a 
maximum of 90%) with a guaranteed 
minimum of $400/mo. 

Guaranteed minimum removed.  

   
Shift Premium $.35/hr. afternoons and $.45/hr. midnights $.40/hr. afternoons and $.50/hr. midnights 
   
   
Overtime 
 

Employee paid 2x time for work on 7th 
consecutive day. 

7th consecutive day, if worked, will be 
compensated at regular overtime (1.5x) rate. 

   
Sick/Vacation Leave Must be on payroll 15 days in a months to 

accrue time. 
Must be on payroll 20 calendar days in a 
month to accrue time. 
 

   
Health Insurance  Reopener for Health Insurance, if needed, 

regarding the “Cadillac tax.” 
    
    
Tuition 
Reimbursement 

 Reinstated previous plan; increased maximum 
reimbursement per fiscal year by $500 (to 
$2,500/pp) and clarified conditions of 
repayment. 

    
    
Miscellaneous   Clarified leave time provisions in layoff 

situations. 
Other language cleanup to bring contract 
language up to date. 

     
     

 
 
 



TENTATIVE AGREEMENT  
City of Troy and MAP 

2015-2018 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 

  

G: Negotiations/MAP/2015 Page 1 of 5 

ARTICLE XVI.   LAYOFFS AND RECALL   

59. Layoff shall be by total seniority of City employment.  The following procedure shall 
govern the layoff of employees: 

 

A. With the exception of employees in the City Clerk’s Office, seasonal, 
temporary, part-time, and probationary employees (in that order), performing 
Bargaining Unit work, shall be laid off first within a classification in a 
department before the layoff of any Bargaining Unit members within that 
classification.  The City Clerk’s office (only) may have part-time employees 
while full-time employees are laid off so long as part-time positions are 
offered to laid off full-time employees first.  When an employee exercises 
bumping rights into a classification as a result of a layoff as explained above, 
the seasonal, temporary, part-time, and probationary employees within the 
department (in that order) who perform Bargaining Unit work shall be laid off 
before the layoff of any bargaining unit members within that classification. 

 

B. Thereafter, seniority employees who are serving a trial period in a 
classification shall be removed from that position in order of their date of 
entry into such classification and shall be returned to their former 
classification, provided they have sufficient seniority. 

 

C.  Employees with accrued but unused sick and vacation time will be 
paid out for such unused time upon layoff. 

   

60. When the working force is increased after a layoff, the employees shall be called 
back in reverse order of the Layoff Section.  The employees shall be returned to the 
same pay step that they were on at the time of the layoff.  Employees will return 
to their previous accrual levels for vacation leave; layoff time is not included 
in the calculation of for determining an employee’s vacation accrual level. 

 

ARTICLE XX. WORK WEEK 

71. The Employer shall establish the working hours for each position in order to meet 

operating requirements within the schedule below: 
 

A. Day Shift – either 8 or 10 consecutive hour schedules shall start between 

the hours of 7:00 AM through 9:00 AM. 
 

B. Afternoon Shift – either 8 or 10 consecutive hour schedules shall start 

between the hours of 3:00 PM through 5:00 PM. 
 

C. Midnight Shift – either 8 or 10 consecutive hour schedules shall start 

between the hours of 9:00 PM through 12:00 AM. 
 

D.   Fourth Shift – either 8 or 10 consecutive hour schedules shall start 

between the hours of 12:00 PM through 3:00 PM. 
 

DE. Animal Control Officer classification will be subject to varied hours winter 

and summer. 



G: Negotiations/MAP/2015 Page 2 of 5 

ARTICLE XXI.   OVERTIME   
73. Employees will be paid two times their regular hourly rate for all overtime hours 

worked on: 
 

A. The employee’s 7th work day when the employee has worked 7 
consecutive days. 

B. H holidays (when the holiday is not a part of the employee’s regular work 
schedule).    For purposes of this section, the holiday shall be the actual 
holiday, not the designated day when a holiday falls on a weekend. 

 
 

ARTICLE XXIII.   VACATION LEAVE    

87. For purposes of this Article, an employee must have been on the Employer’s payroll 

for  at least 15 20 calendar days within a month to accrue a vacation leave for such 

month.  Except as provided in Section 51, Seniority, an employee shall be deemed 

on the payroll for a day if he/she receives compensation from the Employer for such 

day or part of a day. 

 

 

ARTICLE XXIV.   SICK LEAVE  
94. An employee shall accrue 8 hours of sick leave for each month he is on the 

Employer’s payroll as defined in Section 87 of Article XXIII (Vacation), for at least 
20 calendar days within a month beginning with the first full calendar month of 
service.  If an employee is receiving benefits from an insurance carrier as a result 
of his sickness or disability, his sick leave allowance shall be used to supplement 
such insurance benefits as provided in Articles XXVIII, XXIX, and XXX. 

 

 

ARTICLE XXVII HEALTH INSURANCE 

109.  All employees covered by this contract shall be entitled to the following insurance 

coverage subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and the insurance 

contract between the Employer and its insurance carrier: 

 

E.   The City shall opt out of PA 152 for two years (2013-14 and 2014-15). The 

City and the Union agree to reopen the contract regarding the Federal 

“Cadillac Tax” impact on health care only. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



G: Negotiations/MAP/2015 Page 3 of 5 

ARTICLE XXVIII.   SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE – 

    WORK RELATED INJURY      
 

111. The parties to this agreement understand that Worker’s Compensation benefits are 

paid in accordance with applicable Worker’s Compensation laws of the State of 

Michigan, but that supplemental payments for the first thirty (30) days are made 

subject to the employee: 
 

A. Immediately upon reasonable knowledge of the injury, reporting the injury 

to his immediate supervisor; 

B. Completing the appropriate forms documenting the injury and cause of 

same; 

C. Treating with the City designated clinic for the first ten (10) days after the 

injury or disability pursuant to the current Michigan Worker’s 

Compensation law (currently 28 days); 

 

ARTICLE XXXI.   RETIREMENT 

B. Defined Contribution Plan:  Employees hired on or after 12/21/98 shall 
participate in the Defined Contribution (DC) Pension Program.  The DC 
plan is elective for employees hired before 12/21/98. 

1. Contribution rates: 
   Current employees:   
       Employee    4% 
       Employer     9%  
          
   Employees hired on or after 12/21/98:  
       Employee    5% 
       Employer     8% 8.25% 
 
   Employees hired on or after 2/7/05:   
       Employee    5% 
       Employer     7%  
 

E. 1. Upon regular retirement, early retirement or disability retirement,        
employees may be eligible for retiree health insurance.  For employees 
retiring after July 1, 200115, the City pays 4% of the monthly cost of retiree 
health care for credited retirement service with the City of Troy (for service 
after 7/1/2013 the percent decreases to 3% per year of future service) 
to a maximum of 90% or $400 per month, whichever is greater, for two (2) 
person coverage for retiree, spouse at the time of retirement, or a 
dependent child, provided that the retiree or spouse is drawing pension 
benefits pursuant to the City of Troy Retirement Ordinance.  A retiree may 
pay, at his/her own option and expense, the difference between a two-
person and family rate.   

 

  Effective 7/1/2013, the City pays 3% for each future year of credited 
service to a maximum of 90%.  Current employees who as of 7/1/2013 
would be eligible for 90% or more of City paid health insurance shall not 
have that amount reduced as a result of this paragraph. 



G: Negotiations/MAP/2015 Page 4 of 5 

ARTICLE XXXIV.  SHIFT PREMIUM  

126. Employees regularly scheduled by the City to work on the afternoon or midnight 

shift shall receive a shift premium as provided below for each such regularly 

scheduled day.  The shift premium shall be as follows: 

 

   Afternoon Shift  $.35/hr. .40/hr  

   Midnight Shift   $.45/hr. .50/hr 

 

APPENDIX A - WAGES 

2015  2% 

2016  1% with $400 lump sum 

2017  1% with $400 lump sum 

 

New Article: 

TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
 

###.   A seniority employee may be eligible for tuition reimbursement under  the 
following conditions: 

   A.  Reimbursement   shall   be   for  100%  of   such  employee's  actual   
tuition   cost  and shall  not duplicate  any  financial  aid  such  as  
scholarships,  grants and aids, GI Bill, etc. 

   B.  Reimbursement shall be tuition costs only and shall not include other fees, 
books, or any other expenses. 

   C.  Courses  included  in  this  program must  be  required for an Associates 
degree, Bachelors degree, or a certificate program that is organizationally 
related, and approved by the City Manager or his designee. 

   D.  The course  must  be  taken  at  an  accredited  school,  college  or  
university,  but does not have to be a credit course. 

   E.  A final grade of "C" or better, or a passing grade in the case of a certificate 
program, must be achieved. 

   F.  No employee shall  receive  more  than $2,000 Each employee may 
receive up to $2,500 under this program in any each fiscal year.   

###.    To participate in this program, seniority employees must submit an  application   
    and request reimbursement through the following procedures: 
 
   A.  Such employee must submit an application form together with 

satisfactory evidence of tuition cost which must then be reviewed by the 
City Manager or his designee for approval. 

   B.  The application must be submitted at least 10 days before the starting 
date of the course. 



G: Negotiations/MAP/2015 Page 5 of 5 

   C.  To receive reimbursement, within one year of the completion of the 
course, the employee must submit verification of 1) his payment of the 
tuition, and 2) a final grade of "C" or better for the course.  If the actual 
cost of the tuition is higher than the tuition cost submitted on the 
application to the Employer, reimbursement shall be at the higher cost, 
provided such higher cost resulted from a change in tuition by the 
school or college (within the maximum reimbursement for that fiscal 
year). 

   D.  Prior to receiving the reimbursement, the employee shall sign an 
agreement to repay to the City the entire amount of the reimbursement 
if the employee terminates his/her employment with the City (including 
retirement) or is terminated by the City for any reason except disability 
within three (3) years of the completion of the course for which he/she 
was reimbursed. 

 

NOTES – EXHIBIT A  
 

Advancements up the steps shall thereafter be at the employee’s pay change date (one 

year from last step increase in that classification or promotion class).  Employees on 

start shall advance in six months. 
 

An employee who is receiving a salary higher than the salary applicable to the 

classification shall continue to receive the same amount of salary over any new scales 

agreed upon, until such time as the employee either changes classification or 

terminates. 
 

The Employer retains the right to hire a new employee at any salary equivalent up to 

and including the starting salary and step one salary. 
 

Employees who are promoted shall be assigned a step in their new classification that 

provides not less than $500.00 increase per annum over their present (current salary 

before promotion) salary, but in no event more than the highest step in the classification 

pay range. 
 

Employees who are demoted shall be assigned their existing step but in the new 

classification (i.e. Step 3 Secretary to Step 3 Office Assistant) and remain on their 

existing step progression timeline. 

 

 

FOR THE UNION:      FOR THE CITY: 
 
_________________________________   __________________________________ 
 
_________________________________   __________________________________ 
 

Date: ________________     Date: ________________ 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 1 - 

Rev. David Huseltine from Big Beaver United Methodist Church performed the Invocation.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, June 22, 2015, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Steve Gottlieb 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz – Arrived at 7:33 PM 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 

Months of January and February 2015, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart 

Will Present a Check in the Amount of $585 to Pam Vanderkerkhove from Cass 

Community Social Services (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Director) 

 

C-2 Service Commendation Presented to Curtis Hsu, Athens High Graduate, 2015 for 

His Exceptional Volunteer Service to the Troy Community and Beyond (Presented 
by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 

 

C-3 American Public Works Association Award Project of the Year Award for the 2014 

Troy Roads Rock Project Received by Steve Vandette, City Engineer, and Kurt 

Bovensiep, Public Works Manager (Presented by:  Chuck Hart, APWA President) 
 

C-4 Elite Fleet Award for City of Troy Fleet Division – Government Fleet Honored the 

Four Elite Fleets in the Nation Including the City of Troy, MI to Sam Lamerato, 

Fleet Superintendent, and the DPW Fleet Team (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 
 

C-5 Trails and Pathways Update (Presented by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works 
Manager) 

 

C-6 Building Department Activity Update (Presented by:  Mark Miller, Director of 
Economic and Community Development, and Paul Featherston, SafeBuilt) 

 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 2 - 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Historic District Commission, Parks and Recreation 

Board, Personnel Board, Traffic Committee 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2015-06-080 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Hodorek  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
 

Term Expires:  5/15/2018 Timothy McGee 

 Term currently held by: Timothy McGee 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 3 - 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School Board Member: 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
 

Term Expires:  7/31/2016 Elizabeth Slifkin 

 Term currently held by: Vacancy (Student) 
 
 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018 Edna Abrahim 

 Term currently held by: Edna Abrahim 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018 P. Terry Knight 

 Term currently held by: P. Terry Knight 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018 Lorraine New 

 Term currently held by: Lorraine New 
 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
 

Term Expires:  7/31/2016 Kathleen Regan 

 Term currently held by: Vacancy (STUDENT) 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision 

Committee, Historic District Commission, Traffic Committee, Zoning Board of 

Appeals 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
City Council took no action on this item. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 4 - 

b) City Council Nominations:  

 
Resolution #2015-06-081 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Pennington  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

 

Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018 Thomas Desmond 

 Term currently held by: Thomas Desmond 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018 Glenn Clark 

 Term currently held by: Glenn Clark 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Campbell  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 5 - 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 8, 2015 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Carpet 

Replacement – Police Department and Budget Amendment 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for carpet replacement at the 
Police Department to the low bidder; United Flooring Center of Troy, MI, for an estimated total 
amount of $35,969.40 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 4, 2015. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AMENDS the 2015/2016 Police 
Department Capital Budget in the amount of $36,000.00 in order to complete the project in the 
2015/2016 fiscal year. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, Insurance Certificates, and all 
other specified requirements. 
 

J-5 City of Troy FOIA Policy Amendments – Effective July 1, 2015 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-5 
 
WHEREAS, On July 1, 2015, extensive revisions to Public Act 442 of 1976, otherwise known 
as the Michigan Freedom of Information Act, will go into effect; and, 
 
WHEREAS, As of July 1, 2015, public bodies will be required to provide copies of their FOIA 
Policies and Public Summaries on their official websites in order to be allowed to charge fees 
for FOIA requests; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy FOIA Policy was originally adopted by Troy City Council in 2005 
and is currently published on the City of Troy official website;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the amended City 
of Troy FOIA Policy and Guidelines, and the City of Troy FOIA Public Summary, effective July 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 6 - 

1, 2015, copies of which shall be MADE AVAILABLE upon request at the City Clerk’s Office 

and shall be PUBLISHED on the City of Troy official website. 
 

J-6 2015 Annual Budget Amendments 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2014/15 Year End Budget 

Amendments as submitted; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

J-7 Terrell Bishop v City of Troy, et. al. Lawsuit 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-7 
 

RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy and the Troy Police Department in any and all claims and damages in the matter of 
Ledell Hammond v. City of Troy, et al. (Case No. 2:15-cv-12051).  The City Attorney is also 

AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and fees in the defense of the action.   
 

J-8 Dandu and Moustan v City of Troy, et. al. Lawsuit 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-8 
 

RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Dandu and Moustan v. City of 
Troy and Oakland County Treasurer (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 2015-147152-

CZ).  The City Attorney is also AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and fees in the defense 
of the action.   
 

J-9 Ledell Hammond v City of Troy, et. al. Lawsuit 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-9 
 

RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy and the Troy Police Department in any and all claims and damages in the matter of 
Ledell Hammond v. City of Troy, et al. (Case No. 2:15-cv-12051).  The City Attorney is also 

AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and fees in the defense of the action.   
 

J-10 Exempt Classification Plan Update 
 
Resolution #2015-06-082-J-10 
 
WHEREAS, The Classification Plan for Exempt Employees was last revised July 2014; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Organizational changes require updates to job titles and grade assignments in this 
plan;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 7 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the July 1, 2015 revisions to the 
Classification Plan for Exempt Employees. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

Russ Chavaux - Resident Spoke requesting vending machines at City parks. 

Martha Wells - Resident Spoke requesting covered shelter at bus stops. 

 
 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

City Manager Kischnick addressed public comment regarding the vending machines.  Mr. 
Chavaux provided prior vending and consession services for the City of Troy.  The City has 
taken over concessions at the Troy Family Aquatic Center, and put out a bid for service at the 
parks with no responses.  The City then put out a RFP and received one proposal from Jack 
Johansson, which is in the process of being evaluated.  Mr. Kischnick, City Administration and 
Mr. Chavaux will discuss this issue and City Manager Kischnick will provide an update to City 
Council.  
 
Mayor Slater addressed the public comment requresting shelter at bus stops. City Manager 
Kischnick indicated that City Administration will reach out to SMART.  Mayor Slater indicated 
that shelter at the bus stops is a good idea.  Council Member Hodorek also thanked Ms. Wells 
for her comments.  She spoke that these comments will help guide the City to stand apart in 
their goal to achieve a pedestrian-friendly and walkable community.  
 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals  
 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 8 - 

Council Member Hodorek spoke about her recent invitation to attend a meeting of a newly 
formed group, Troy Area Alliance Against Hate Crimes.  Their undertaking is for the purpose of 
hate crime and hate biased prevention through education and also to offer support where 
desired to victims of such crimes in the Troy area.  She mentioned that this timely to share this 
information considering the recent tragedy in Charleston, SC.  For more information, please 
contact Council Member Hodorek. 
 
Council Member Gottlieb spoke of his recent visit to the Troy Nature Center.  He encourages 
everyone to visit the Troy Nature Center. 
 
 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #7O – 
Order of Business – Council Comments 
 
Resolution #2015-06-083 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Gottlieb  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #7O Order of Business - Council Comments to take action on an item that does 
not appear on the Agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

Vote on Resolution to Reschedule the July 6, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting to July 

13, 2015 
 
Resolution #2015-06-084 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Campbell  

  

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCHEDULES the Regular City Council Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, July 6, 2015, to Monday, July 13, 2015 starting at 7:30 PM in the City 
Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI  48084, and directing City 
Management to publish notice in accordance with the Open Meetings Act provisions. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mayor Slater applauded the recent Road Commission for Oakland County’s Road Report 
acknowledging that “Troy Steps Up for the Second Year to Help Repair Roads.”  He thanked 
the Road Commission for Oakland County for recognizing, supporting, and partnering with the 
City of Troy. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 9 - 

Mayor Slater spoke about a special visitor to the City of Troy.  Swami, a monk from India, 
visited the area and taught a Yoga class at the Troy Community Center.  On Sunday morning, 
there was a tree planting ceremony at the Troy Community Center, as Swami plants a fruit tree 
in every community he visits.  A plaque will be made and dedicated in his honor.   
 
Council Member Hodorek thanked Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart and City Staff for 
the City of Troy 60th Birthday Party on Saturday.  There was a tremendous turnout experiencing 
good, old-fashioned fun with DPW vehicles, police cars, fire trucks, music, dancing, movie 
night, and great fun for all. 

P. REPORTS: 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Retiree Healthcare Benefits Plan & Trust Minutes-Final – February 11, 2015 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes-Final – March 11, 2015 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – May 6, 2015 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes-Final – May 13, 2015 
e) Traffic Committee Minutes-Final – May 13, 2015  
f) Planning Commission Minutes-Final – May 26, 2015  

Noted and Filed 
 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Troy Public Library Chosen as Part of MCLA Library Match Project 
b) Building Department Activity Report – May, 2015  
c) SHARP (Senior Home Assistance Repair Program) Annual Report  

Noted and Filed 
 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Chief Gary Mayer from Bob Gornowich Regarding Sgt. Scott Smith and Sgt. Andy 

Breidenich 
b) To Chief Gary Mayer from Jessica R. Cooper, Oakland County Attorney Regarding 

Detectives Mork, Schuler and Wolfe  
Noted and Filed 

 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 22, 2015 

 

- 10 - 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 8:40 PM. 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

Cheryl A. Stewart 
Administrative Aide 

 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  July 6, 2015 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance 
  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contract Award – Two (2) Dump 

Trucks with snow removal and deicing systems  
 
History 

 The two (2) tandem axle dump/salt trucks are used on a daily basis by the DPW Streets and 
Drains Division for snow plowing and de-icing major and local roads, grading, road repairs and 
ditch cleaning.  

 The city’s snowplow fleet has a 12-15 year life-cycle. 

 The two (2) trucks being replaced are 2000 model year Sterling dump trucks.  These trucks 
have reached their intended life cycle, will be removed from the fleet and sold at auction.   

 The new dump trucks will have current technology and wing plows which are very effective and 
efficient for snow removal. 

 The Cities of Auburn Hills, Farmington Hills, Madison Heights, Midland, St. Clair Shores, Troy, 
and Warren; members of the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) 
cooperatively developed and issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the purchase of 
Single/Tandem Axle Dump Truck(s), parts, and related services.   

 The RFP was developed with the intent of procuring Single/Tandem Axle Dump Trucks for 
Snow and Ice Removal Services meeting all of the entities’ specifications, and to create a 
contract that would offer a comprehensive list of chassis, truck equipment, parts and related 
services for Single/Tandem Axle Dump Trucks.   

 The intent of the RFP was to create a comprehensive contract for MITN cooperative entities so 
as to utilize and aggregate purchasing volumes of the agencies to generate best value offers 
from Single/Tandem Axle Chassis Vendors and Truck Equipment Vendors.   

 The MITN cooperative group estimates and anticipates an initial purchase of twenty (20) 
trucks; based on this cooperative effort. 

 From the proposal review process the evaluation committee shortlisted and subsequently 
requested interviews and site visits from the qualified and approved proposers.  Scoring for 
each phase was conducted.   

 Wolverine Freightliner and Truck and Trailer Specialties, Inc. were selected and unanimously 
supported by the entities as providing the best value, quality product, timely delivery, 
exceptional services, an ongoing training program, and also offering the most comprehensive 
options to meet all of the entities needs.   

stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 The selection was supported by several positive references received from other communities 
utilizing these companies for the purchase of their equipment.   

 

Purchasing 

 Request for Proposals were solicited utilizing the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network 
(MITN) website.  

 Five (5) proposal responses were received as listed below: 
 

International Truck Company 
Wolverine Freightliner 
Knapheide Truck Equipment 
Bell Equipment Company 
Truck & Trailer Specialties, Inc. 

 

 The proposal review process consisted of three stages; proposal review, interviews, and site 
visits. 

 Proposals were evaluated by the City of Rochester Hills Fleet personnel and purchasing staff, 
as well as all the representatives from the participating cooperative MITN members which were 
the cities of Auburn Hills, Farmington Hills, Madison Heights, Midland, St. Clair Shores, Troy 
and Warren. 

 The City of Troy was instrumental in developing the Request for Proposal specifications and 
was also an integral part of the evaluation team with the above listed cities. 

 

Financial 

 Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account. 

 Also note; built into the RFP is an additional potential quantity discount for MITN entities 
participating in this cooperative purchase.  The discount is based on the aggregate yearly 
purchase.  The additional potential discount structure is as follows: 

 10-19 units will receive a 1% discount 

 20 plus units will receive a 2% discount 

 The percentage of discount applies to the Truck and Trailer Specialties portion of the purchase 
only. 

 

Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding purchase orders for the purchase two (2) tandem axle truck 
chassis, at $99,679.00 each to Wolverine Freightliner-Eastside, Inc., of Mount Clemens, MI for an 
estimated total price of $199,358.00.  City management also recommends awarding purchase orders 
for the purchase of two (2) dump bodies, snow removal and deicing system for the Streets Division 
for $104,238.68 each from Truck and Trailer Specialties, Inc., of Dutton, MI for an estimated price of 
$208,477.36, as per the MITN cooperative purchasing group RFP pricing. 
The combined purchase of the two (2) truck chassis and two (2) dump body with snow removal and 
deicing systems for an estimated total cost of $407,835.36 as per the MITN cooperative purchasing 
group RFP pricing. 
 



 

 

3 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 15-16 \ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 MITN_2DumpTrucks_Snowplows_Memo 
 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: July 1, 2015 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

Subject: ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (JULY 20, 2015) – REZONING APPLICATION 
(File Number Z 746) – Proposed Troy Fire Station No. 4, North side of Maple, East of 
John R (2103 and 2121 E Maple), Section 25, From R-1E (One Family Residential) 
District to NN ‘C’ (Neighborhood Node ‘C’) 

 
The City of Troy seeks rezoning of the subject parcel from R-1E One Family Residential District to 
NN Neighborhood Node (Node “C”) District. The City intends to construct a new Fire Station No. 4 
on the site. The existing fire station will remain in operation until the new station is constructed and 
operational, after which the old station will be demolished.  
 
The parcel to be rezoned is presently comprised of a parking area and a single family home. Fire 
stations are permitted by right in the NN district. A site plan will be submitted to the Planning 
Commission for review and approval following rezoning. A concept drawing was included with the 
application. The drawing was intended to show general scope, and is not an actual proposed site 
plan.  
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Neighborhood Node. The rezoning is therefore consistent 
with the Master Plan. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item at the June 23, 2015 Regular meeting 
and recommended approval of the rezoning with a vote of 9-0. The agenda item from that meeting 
summarizes that meeting, and is attached. 
 
Two Troy residents who own property east of Fire Station #4 expressed opposition to the rezoning 
at the public hearing. Their concerns included loss of privacy and decrease in property values. 
Representatives of the Planning Department and Fire Department met with the residents at the site 
on June 30, 2015 to listen to their concerns. These concerns will be shared with the design team so 
they can be considered during site design.  
 
A public hearing for this item is scheduled for the July 20, 2015 City Council Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Planning Commission agenda item from June 23, 2015 Regular meeting. 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the June 23, 2015 Regular Meeting (draft excerpt) 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 746  Troy Fire Station Four  Sec 25\CC Memo_Announce Public Hearing 2015 07 13.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
K-01a



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

13,815

1:

Feet13,8150 6,907



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

323

1:

Feet3230 161



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

323

1:

Feet3230 161



PC 2015.06.15 

  Agenda Item # 10 

 

 
 
DATE: June 18, 2015 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 746) – 
Proposed Troy Fire Station No. 4, North side of Maple, East of John R 
(2103 and 2121 E Maple), Section 25, From R-1E (One Family 
Residential) District to NN ‘C’ (Neighborhood Node ‘C’) 

 
The City of Troy seeks rezoning of the subject parcel from R-1E One Family Residential 
District to NN Neighborhood Node (Node “C”) District. The parcel is presently 
comprised of a parking area and a single family home. The City intends to construct a 
new Fire Station N. 4 on the site. Fire stations are permitted by right in the NN district.   
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Neighborhood Node.  A description of this 
classification is attached.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the June 18, 2015 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4. Concept drawing 

 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 746  Troy Fire Station Four  Sec 25\PC Memo 06 23 2015.doc 

 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

323

1:

Feet3230 161



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

323

1:

Feet3230 161



93

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Neighborhood Nodes: 

The Economic Neighborhood

Located at intersections of the City’s main • 
roads.
Work together with Social Neighborhoods to • 
create a more livable community.
Mixed use.• 
Provide neighborhood gathering places.• 
Accommodate the daily needs of residents.• 

Neighborhood Nodes are the concentrated, 

commercial and mixed-use centers situated 

at major intersections of Troy thoroughfares 

that serve as the center of the City’s Economic 

Neighborhoods.  The nodes are specifi cally 
identifi ed on pages 95 and 96.  Economic 
Neighborhoods are destinations created as 
“go to” places that take on a social role, serving 
both as a place to meet basic needs of the 
community and as 21st century village centers.  
The attributes of Economic Neighborhoods 
are described in more detail in the fi nal 
section of this Chapter, and the urban design 
characteristics of Neighborhood Nodes will be 
described in depth in Chapter 10.  The nodes 
will typically permit a mix of commercial, offi  ce, 
and high-density residential, although the 
predominant uses in any Neighborhood Node 
development must be in keeping with the 
node characteristics described on pages 95 and 

96.  Industrial uses will not be permitted in the 
Neighborhood Nodes. 

The Economic Neighborhoods of Troy also 
center on the square mile grid system.  Unlike 
the social neighborhood, the Economic 

Neighborhoods are centered on major road 

intersections where commercial and offi  ce 

development occurs.  When destinations are 
created, these nodes become a “go to” place 
and take on a social role.  Each of these nodes 
serves four quadrants of the overlapping social 
neighborhoods and has the ability to bring 
residents of four neighborhoods together.  

These Economic Neighborhood nodes 
are destinations that draw people, visually 
distinguished from the balance of corridor strips 
through greater density and scale.  Variation in 
building height will often be used to separate 
the node from the surrounding area, but will 
not be so extreme as to visually overpower 
abutting neighborhoods.  The separation of 
building heights at intersections with the 
“between” segments of corridors stimulates the 
visual concept of “pulsing” development and 
sets up a system of visual anchors.   

Moderately dense residential environments 
may be encouraged within some nodes to 
provide steady activity for longer periods of the 
day.  In these cases, residences may be mixed 
with offi  ces on upper fl oors or be developed 
immediately adjacent to the commercial areas.  
Connections between the commercial activity 
and residences must be directly and seamlessly 
integrated.  

During the course of the planning process, the 
Planning Commission closely analyzed the need 
for additional neighborhood nodes throughout 
the City.  The City will continue to consider 
the demand for additional nodes as part of 
subsequent plan revisions.

NEIGHBORHOOD NODES



94 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
These nodes are within a fi fteen • 
minute walking distance of residential 
neighborhoods to permit alternative modes 
of transportation.  

Development will be denser and taller than • 
the surrounding area, encouraging visual 
prominence to signal a gathering space.

Nodes should be generally confi ned to a • 
1,000 foot radius from a major intersection.

The nodes provide uses and spaces that • 
attract and welcome neighborhood 
residents.  

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should be separated from the • 
right-of-way line by a landscaped greenbelt, 
one lane of off -street parking or a pedestrian 
walk, or a combination of these.  

Primary parking areas will be located within • 
rear or interior side yards.

Off -street parking should be screened from • 
the public right-of-way by a knee wall or low 
decorative fence with a hedge of plantings.

Walks will connect adjacent developments • 
and the public sidewalks.

Well-defi ned crosswalks with timed • 
signalization will permit safe crossings.

Flexible use of space allowing modest • 
outdoor gathering spaces, such as plazas, 
will be encouraged.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should be between two and three • 
stories, although one–story structures 
accommodating gas stations or other 
special situations may be permitted.  

One-story buildings should have a minimum • 
exterior height of sixteen feet.

A ground level story should have a • 

minimum height of twelve feet from 
fi nished fl oor to fi nished ceiling.  

Facades facing major thoroughfares will • 
be treated as fronts and should have a 
minimum of half transparent glass and 
special architectural design treatments.  

Fenestration (the arrangement of windows • 
and doors) should be highlighted through 
the use of awnings, overhangs or trim 
detailing.  

Lighting will be carefully managed so as not • 
to encroach on adjacent residential areas.

The following pages contain a table 
describing the primary intended uses and 

character of the Neighborhood Nodes designated 
on the Future Land Use Map.  Individual Nodes are 
numbered and identifi ed on the Economic Nodes 

Map following the table.



95

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Node/Intersection Primary Uses and Character

A 14 Mile and 
Dequindre Road

Non-residential uses catering to the day-to-day needs of the workforce in the 
surrounding industrial area.  Restaurants and convenience needs integrated with 
banks and other service uses in compact developments would suit the needs of this 
area.

B Maple Road and 
Dequindre Road

The unique neighborhood node is home to a collection of uses serving the local 
Polish population.  Uses complementary to the cultural center and bank which help 
this area serve as a gathering place and focus area for the neighborhood could 
include limited housing, service uses, or specialty retail and dining.

C John R. Road and 
Maple Road

The node would best serve the area with a predominantly commercial mix of uses 
catering to the immediate residential area coming and going from their homes. The 
node should serve as a transition to the more intense commercial development to 
the south.

D Big Beaver Road and 
Dequindre Road

This area should be a high-intensity, high-density, compact area that serves as a 
notable entry point to the community.  Development may include residential, retail, 
office, and service-oriented uses, but should be designed to create a very noticeable 
“gateway” into Troy with its complex, high-density, mixed-use character.

E Wattles Road and 
Dequindre Road

The predominant use in this node should be offices, both medical and professional.  
Limited commercial service uses designed to complement the main focus of the 
area as an office node serving this area of the City may also be permissible, if clearly 
secondary to the primary office character of the area.

F John R Road and 
Wattles Road

This node may include all uses from high-density residential in combination with 
restaurants, limited office, and retail.  Development at this intersection should include 
at least two of these uses in any one development, in order to better complement 
and strengthen the already mixed-use character of the node.

G Rochester Road and 
Wattles Road

A careful blend of commercial uses and office uses, effectively transitioned into the 
adjoining residential neighborhoods, should be the main uses at this intersection.  
Recent residential development in the area has taken pedestrian access to the 
intersection into consideration with effective pathways and sidewalks, and any new 
development at the intersection must continue this positive trend.

H Livernois Road and 
Wattles Road 

This lower-intensity area is characterized by single-family residential directly abutting 
the southwest corner of the intersection, and uses which generate only sporadic 
activity, such as churches and day care.  This node contains the Troy Museum and 
Historic Village. New development or redevelopment at this node must be especially 
considerate of the adjoining residential and low-intensity uses and should not 
include any retail or restaurant uses.  Office and other uses similar to the existing uses 
would likely provide the best combination here.

I Crooks Road and 
Wattles Road

Development at this location should be low-impact and provide a high benefit to 
the neighborhood using the least amount of land.  Compact, walkable mixed use 
development with a combination of uses serving the immediate surroundings would 
be an ideal fit.  Integrated compact development which would allow a user to park 
once and meet several daily needs would be a positive contribution to the node. The 
City also recognizes that expansion of the White Chapel Cemetery into the northeast 
corner of this node would be appropriate.

J Dequindre Road and 
Long Lake Road

Predominantly commercial, catering to both local needs and regional traffic, 
new development and redevelopment should be mostly commercial, identifying 
opportunities for small office mixed-use and variations in floor area to allow for 
a wide range of commercial types.  Pedestrian access to the adjoining area and 
effective screening should be primary areas of focus during the site design process.



96 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Node/Intersection Primary Uses and Character

K John R Road and 
Long Lake Road

Like Crooks Road and Wattles Road, compact, walkable mixed use development with 
a combination of uses serving the immediate surroundings would be an ideal fit.  
Integrated compact development which would allow a user to park once and meet 
several daily needs would be a positive contribution to the node.

L Rochester Road and 
Long Lake Road

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

M Livernois Road and 
Long Lake Road

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

N Dequindre Road and 
Square Lake Road

Low-intensity commercial uses should remain, but redevelopment should include an 
integrated compact residential component, live/work units, or small office.  Service-
oriented use development in combination with new residential development would 
provide a unique setting here.

O John R Road and 
Square Lake Road

Near a known heron rookery, this node must be careful to respect this important 
natural resource.  New development or redevelopment should complement the 
churches and limited commercial uses in the area, and should incorporate above-
average landscaping, natural buffers, and conscientious site design to enhance the 
known natural features in the area.

P Rochester Road and 
Square Lake Road

Major commercial uses dominate and should continue to provide a foundation for 
this neighborhood node.  While uses in the area may cater to regional traffic, service 
uses, retail, and limited office uses designed to provide service to the immediate 
residential neighborhood should be incorporated into any new development or 
redevelopment plans.

Q Livernois Road and 
Square Lake Road

Development in this area should be especially considerate of the remaining historic 
asset of the neighborhood.  Adaptive use of existing historic structures must be 
considered before demolition or relocation of these resources.  Low-intensity uses 
working in conjunction with one another to form a central neighborhood village, 
walkable and accessible, would create an ideal complement to the predominantly 
residential surroundings.

R John R Road and 
South Boulevard

Small local commercial uses and office uses should be the focus of this node, to 
complement the large scale office development across the City’s boundary to the 
north, within the City of Rochester Hills.

S Rochester Road and 
South Boulevard

This neighborhood node provides a suitable mix of uses to cater to the daily needs 
of the immediate residential area, while also providing a unique opportunity for 
specialty retailers, compact walkable residential development, and small-scale office 
development in an integrated, mixed-use setting.

T Livernois Road and 
South Boulevard

Limited local commercial and housing for seniors in a dense development pattern 
should remain the primary focus of this neighborhood node.

U Crooks Road and 
South Boulevard

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

 



 
 Date:     June 12, 2015 

Rezoning Analysis 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 

 

 
 
Applicant:  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 c/o City of Troy, Michigan  
 500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
 Troy, MI 48084 
 
Project Name: Troy Fire Station #4 Rezoning 
 
Location: 2103 and 2121 E. Maple Rd. (north side of Maple, east of John R.) 
 
Current Zoning: R-1E, One-Family Residential   
 
Proposed Rezoning:  NN-C, Neighborhood Node 
 
Action Requested: Rezoning to NN-C, Neighborhood Node 
  
Required Information: As provided within this review 
 
 

PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
The applicant, the City of Troy, is proposing to 
rezone two (2) parcels from R-1E, One Family 
Residential, to NN-C, Neighborhood Node.   2103 
E. Maple is approximately 1.10 acres in area and 
has split zoning of R-1E on the eastern portion and 
NN-C on the western portion.  The western 
portion (zoned NN-C) is currently improved with 
Troy Fire Station #4 while the eastern portion 
(zoned R-1E) is improved with a parking lot 
associated with the fire station. 2121 E. Maple is 
approximately 0.5 acres in size and is currently 
improved with a single-family detached home. 
 

Zoned 
NN-C 

Zoned 
R-1E 



Troy Fire Station #4 Rezoning 
June 12, 2015 

2 

 

The City of Troy purchased 2021 E. Maple with the intent of demolishing the existing fire station and 
home and constructing a larger station. Publicly-owned and operated office and service facilities 
(including fire stations) are permitted by-right within the NN-C District.  
 
The applicant is requesting that the eastern portion of 2103 E. Maple and all of 2121 E. Maple be 
rezoned to NN-C.  If rezoned, the applicant will submit a site plan for approval.  An aerial image of the 
subject site is depicted in Figure 1.  
 
Figure 1: Subject Site 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Site 



Troy Fire Station #4 Rezoning 
June 12, 2015 

3 

 

 

MASTER PLAN 

 
The adopted 2008 Troy Master Plan designates the subject site as, “John R. Road and Maple Road” 
Neighborhood Node. The Master Plan states that this node, “[…] would best serve the area with a 
predominantly commercial mix of uses catering to the immediate residential area coming and going 
from their homes. The node should serve as a transition to the more intense commercial development to 
the south.” The Future Land Use of the subject site and surrounding parcels is illustrated in Figure 2 and 
Table 1 below: 
 
 

Figure 2. – Future Land Use 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 1. – Future Land Use 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Direction Future Land Use 

Subject Site Neighborhood Node 

North Neighborhood Node/Single 
Family Residential 

South South John R. Road 

East Single Family Residential 

West Neighborhood Node 

Subject Site 



Troy Fire Station #4 Rezoning 
June 12, 2015 

4 

 

The Master Plan envisions a mix of commercial, office and high-density residential for the Neighborhood 
Nodes. The proposed rezoning to Neighborhood Node corresponds to and is consistent with the Troy 
Master Plan.  
 
 

ZONING AND LAND USE 

 
The Zoning and existing land uses for the subject site and surrounding parcels is listed in Table 2 and in 
Figure 3: 
 

Table 2. – Zoning/Existing Land Use 
 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

Subject Site   

 2103 – East R-1E Parking Lot for Fire Station 

 2103 – West NN-C Fire Station #4 

 2121 R-1E Single-Family Home 

North R-1E Single-Family Home 

South R-1E Vacant 

East R-1E Single-Family Home 

West NN-C General Retail/Service 

 
 

Figure 3. – Zoning of Subject Site and Surrounding Parcels 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Site 

Zoned 
NN-C 

Zoned 
R-1E 



Troy Fire Station #4 Rezoning 
June 12, 2015 

5 

 

The two (2) subject parcels are zoned NN-C, Neighborhood Node and R-1E, One Family Residential. 2103 
E. Maple features split zoning, with NN-C on its western portion and R-1E on its western portion; only 
the eastern portion is proposed to be rezoned. The subject site is bordered on its north, east and south 
by R-1E, One Family Residential District and is bordered on its west by NN-C, Neighborhood Node.  
 
The intent of the Neighborhood Nodes District is to serve as the core of the “economic neighborhoods” 
of Troy as identified in the Master Plan. Economic destinations are intended to serve as “go to” places 
that serve as village centers, which can include integrated residential development. Neighborhood 
Nodes should draw people and should be visually distinguished from the surrounding area. However, 
development within Neighborhood Nodes must respect adjacent neighborhoods and should provide 
appropriate transition to adjacent residential areas. 
 
The applicant offers the following reasons for the proposed rezoning and new fire station: 
 

 The NN District is consistent with the zoning of the abutting property to the west. 

 The NN District is consistent with the Master Plan which calls for a neighborhood node at this 
location. 

 Fire stations must be strategically-located in the community based on travel distance from the 
station to the protected properties in the response district.  

 Fire Station #4 is in need of replacement due to obsolescence; the most practical alternative to 
replace the existing station is to build a new building on the existing site (which has been 
expanded through the purchase of the property immediately east of the existing site. This 
alternative maintains fire protection from the site during construction.  

 
Overall, the proposed rezoning is consistent with the existing NN-C zoning of the abutting property to 
the west.   Any future site plans must meet the standards of the NN-C District and mitigate any impacts 
upon adjacent one-family-zoned or used parcels. A future site plan will be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission. 
 

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

 
If the proposed rezoning is approved, any future development shall be required to meet the standards 
of the Neighborhood Node regulating plan contained within the Zoning Ordinance. The applicant has 
submitted a conceptual site plan for the future fire station which illustrates a 10,500 sq. ft. building, 
thirty-six (36) parking spaces and a stormwater detention pond. Per Table 5.06.C.2 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, Building Types A, B and C are permitted by-right on sites zoned NN-C, while Building Type D 
is permitted with special approval.  Though we have not completed a full site plan review, it appears 
that the conceptual plan meets the zoning requirements for NN-Neighborhood Node.   Issues such as 
buffering, building placement, lighting, and landscaping will be reviewed as part of a detailed site plan 
review.   
 

REZONING STANDARDS 

 
As set forth in Section 16.03.C, the following standards shall be applied to a rezoning:  
 

1. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current zoning is in material 
conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the following: 



Troy Fire Station #4 Rezoning 
June 12, 2015 

6 

 

a. A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted. 
b. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 
c. An error in the Master Plan. 

 
CWA Comment: The adopted 2008 Troy Master Plan designates the subject site as, “John R. 
Road and Maple Road” Neighborhood Node.  The Master Plan envisions a mix of commercial, 
office and high-density residential for the Neighborhood Nodes. The proposed rezoning to 
Neighborhood Node corresponds to and is consistent with the Troy Master Plan.   
 

2. The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity. 
 
CWA Comment:  The rezoning will not cause any non-conformity.  Any future development 
requires a site plan review by the Planning Commission. 

 
3. Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 

accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development. 
 

CWA Comment:  The rezoning will improve public service to the area, while not increasing public 
utilities.   
 

4. The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, or welfare. 
 

CWA Comment: The rezoning will improve public health, safety, and welfare by providing a 
modern fire station to serve the surrounding area.   
 

5. The rezoning will ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 
 

CWA Comment:  A portion of the site is currently used as a parking lot for the fire station.  The 
other portion is a single-family home, which the applicant proposes to remove.   Issues such as 
buffering, building placement, lighting, and landscaping will be reviewed as part of a detailed 
site plan review.  Through proper site design, the rezoning will not impact adjacent uses of land.  

 
We find that the proposed rezoning is consistent with the required standards.   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The proposed rezoning from R-1E to NN-C is in substantial compliance with the City of Troy Master Plan, 
is consistent with abutting commercial uses to the west, and meets the rezoning standards set forth in 
Section 16.03.C of the Zoning Ordinance.  We recommend approval of the proposed rezoning.  
 

 







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 23, 2015 
  

 
 

1 
 

 
REZONING REQUEST 

 
10. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 746) – Proposed Troy 

Fire Station No. 4, North side of Maple, East of John R (2103 and 2121 E Maple), Section 
25, From R-1E (One Family Residential) District to NN ‘C’ (Neighborhood Node ‘C’) 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the proposed rezoning as relates to the Master Plan, 
compatibility with the surrounding areas and the rezoning standards of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Mr. Carlisle stated that if the proposed rezoning is approved, the existing fire 
station would remain in service during the construction of the new fire station. He 
recommended approval of the proposed rezoning. 
 
Assistant Fire Chief David Roberts was present. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed a conceptual drawing of the building layout. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following residents were present to express opposition to the proposed rezoning 
because of the close proximity of the new fire station to their homes. 
 

 Natasha Duda, 2167 E Maple 

 Lena Tereziu, 2155 E Maple 

 Theodhor Duda,  2167 E Maple 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-06-041 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1E to NN ‘C’ rezoning request, located on the north side of Maple Road, east 
of John R (2103 and 2121 E. Maple Road), in Section 25, being approximately 0.885 
acres in size, be approved. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 746  Troy Fire Station Four  Sec 25\Minutes\2015 06 23 Regular Meeting_Draft_Excerpt.doc 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
Date: June 30, 2015 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (JULY 20, 2015) – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (File Number: ZOTA 247) – Oil and Gas Extraction 
 
This item was initiated by the Planning Commission, who recognized that the Zoning Ordinance is 
presently silent on the issue of oil and gas extraction. This effort is intended to protect Troy residents 
and property owners against the negative secondary effects of these facilities while at the same time 
creating reasonable standards for oil and gas extraction facilities. 
 
The provisions were discussed by the Planning Commission at previous meetings. The proposed 
provisions would regulate oil and gas extraction in Troy, including fracking.  
 
Draft amendments include the following: 

• Oil and gas facilities are permitted in IB District as a Special Use 
• Requires a minimum lot size of 5 acres 
• Requires increased setbacks based on adjacent use/zoning 
• Requires extensive fencing, landscaping, and limited lighting  
• Requires adherence to strict nuisance and performance standard requirements 
• Requires submittal of a detailed Operations Plan 

 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on June 23, 2015, and recommended 
approval of the text amendment with a 9-0 vote. The attached Planning Commission item provides 
additional background. 
 
A public hearing for this item is scheduled for the July 20, 2015 City Council Regular meeting. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Public Hearing Draft 
2. Map of properties zoned IB and minimum 5 acres in area 
3. Photograph of natural gas rig 
4. Planning Commission minutes from June 23, 2015 Regular meeting (excerpt) 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 247 Oil and Gas Extraction\CC Memo_Announce Public Hearing 2015 07 13.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
K-01b



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows: 
 
Add the following definitions in Section 2.02 to read as follows:  
 
DERRICK – Any portable framework, tower mast and/or structure which is required or used in 
connection with drilling or re-working a well for the production of oil or gas. 
 
DRILLING PAD-- The area of surface operations surrounding the surface location of a well or 
wells. Such area shall not include an access road to the drilling pad. 
 
HYDRAULIC FRACTURING OR FRACKING– The process of injecting water, customized fluids, 
sand, steam, or gas into a gas well under pressure to improve gas recovery. 
 
HORIZONTAL DRILLING- The drilling of an oil or natural gas well at an angle so that the well 
runs parallel to the formation containing the oil or gas. 
 
OIL AND GAS -- Crude oil, natural gas, methane gas, coal bed methane gas, propane, butane 
and/or any other products or similar substances that are produced by drilling an oil or gas well.   
 
OIL AND GAS DEVELOPMENT -- The well site preparation, construction, drilling, redrilling, 
hydraulic fracturing, and/or site restoration associated with an oil or gas well of any depth; water 
and other fluid storage, impoundment and transportation used for such activities; and the 
installation and use of all associated equipment, including tanks, meters, and other  equipment 
and structures whether permanent or temporary; and the site preparation,  construction, 
installation, maintenance and repair of oil and gas pipelines and associated equipment and 
other equipment and activities associated with the exploration for, production and transportation 
of oil and gas. The definition does not include natural gas compressor stations and natural gas 
processing plants or facilities performing the equivalent functions. 
 
  
OIL OR GAS WELL--A pierced or bored hole drilled or being drilled in the ground for the 
purpose of, or to be used for, producing, extracting or injecting gas, oil, petroleum or another 
liquid related to oil or gas production or storage, including brine disposal. 



 
OIL OR GAS WELL SITE -- The location of facilities, structures, materials and equipment 
(whether temporary or permanent), that are necessary for or incidental to the preparation, 
construction, drilling, production or operation of an oil or gas well. This definition also includes 
exploratory wells. 
 
NATURAL GAS COMPRESSOR STATION -- A facility designed and constructed to compress 
natural gas that originates from a gas well or collection of such wells operating as a midstream 
facility for delivery of gas to a transmission pipeline, distribution pipeline, natural gas processing 
plant or underground storage field, including one or more natural gas compressors, associated 
buildings, pipes, valves, tanks and other equipment. 
 
NATURAL GAS PROCESSING PLANT -- A facility designed and constructed to remove 
materials such as ethane, propane, butane, and other constituents or similar substances from 
natural gas to allow such natural gas to be of such quality as is required or appropriate for 
transmission or distribution to commercial markets but not including facilities or equipment that 
is designed and constructed primarily to remove water, water vapor, oil or naturally occurring 
liquids from the natural gas. 
 
STORAGE WELL-- A well used for and in connection with the underground storage of natural 
gas, including injection into or withdrawal from an underground storage reservoir for monitoring 
or observation of reservoir pressure. 
 

Revise the following table in Section 4.21 to read as follows:  
 

 
Add Section 6.33 to read as follows: 
 
Section 6.33: Oil and Gas Well/Development Standards for Special Use Approval: 
 
The purpose of this section is to provide for the reasonable development of land for oil and gas 
drilling while providing adequate health, safety and general welfare protections of the residents of 
Troy.  It is necessary and appropriate to adopt reasonable requirements for oil and gas resource 
development so that these resources can be obtained in a manner that protects the environment, 
protects residential properties and residential property values, and mitigates negative impacts. 
 
The following requirements shall apply to the location, installation, drilling and operation of any 
well for the commercial extraction of oil, gas or other hydrocarbons in the City: 
 

A. Spacing and Well Setbacks. In addition to the spacing and setback requirements of the 
State of Michigan and the regulations of its Supervisor of Wells, the drilling, completion, 
or operation of oil or gas wells or well site shall not be located within 300 feet from any 
road right-of-way, 500 feet of a residentially zoned or used property or any property used 
for a religious facility, public or private school, or hospital, and 100 feet from any other 
property line. The setbacks in this section also apply to the area underground, and 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Oil and Gas 

Well or 

Development 

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP S NP NP NP NP NP 



preclude any horizontal drilling within the setback unless the applicant demonstrates to 
the City’s satisfaction a legal entitlement to drill on adjacent properties through mineral 
rights acquisition or other means.    
 
The measurement of the setback shall be made from the edge of the well site (in a 
straight line, without regard to intervening structures or objects), to the closest exterior 
point of the adjacent parcel.  

 
B. Height. The completed wellhead structure shall not exceed twenty-two (22) feet in 

height. The temporary drilling derrick/rig shall not exceed one-hundred and ten (110) feet 
in height. 
 

C. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum lot size shall be 5 acres. 
 

D. Fencing, Landscaping, and Lighting. 
1. An oil or gas well site shall be completely enclosed within a 6-foot high fence. 
2. Staggered ten (10) foot tall evergreen trees shall be placed around the perimeter 

of the fence with a minimum landscape greenbelt buffer of twenty-five (25) feet in 
depth.  This landscaping buffer shall be in place within thirty (30) days of the 
removal of the temporary drilling derrick/rig. The landscape buffer and trees shall 
be regularly irrigated and maintained. 

3. Exterior lighting shall comply with Section 13.05 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

E. Nuisance Mitigation. The drilling, completion, or operation of oil or gas wells or other 
wells drilled for oil or gas exploration purposes shall comply with Section 12.06, 
Environmental Performance Standards. Those standards address potential nuisances 
such as noise, smoke, dust, open storage, fire and explosive hazards, odors, wastes, 
and vibration. Due to the unique nature of this type of operation, additional information 
and standards may be required. 
 

F. Dust, Noise, Vibration, and Odors. All operations shall be conducted in such a manner 
as to minimize, so far as practicable, dust, noise, vibration, or noxious odors, and shall 
be in accordance with the best accepted practices defined by the Michigan Department 
of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) for the production of oil, gas and other hydrocarbon 
substances in urban areas. All equipment used shall be constructed and operated so 
that vibrations, dust, odor or other harmful or annoying substances or effects will be 
minimized by the operations carried on at any drilling or production site or from anything 
incidental thereto, and to minimize the annoyance of persons living or working in the 
vicinity.  Additionally, the site or structures on the property shall not be permitted to 
become dilapidated, unsightly, or unsafe. The City may impose additional reasonable 
restrictions upon such operations to reduce adverse impacts upon adjacent properties.   

 
G. Oil and Gas Processing Facilities. Associated processing facilities that separate oil, gas, 

and brine and hold said products for transport off-site for further refinement and 
processing are not permitted. 
 

H. Compliance with Laws and Permit Issuance. The drilling, completion, or operation of oil 
or gas wells or other wells drilled for the purpose of oil or gas exploration shall be done 
in conformity with all State and Federal laws, statutes, rules, and regulations pertaining 
thereto and particularly with the State of Michigan and the regulations of its Supervisor of 
Wells. This shall include obtaining the required permit from the Supervisor of Wells, 



which permit shall be provided to the City before the City can grant special use approval 
under this section. This requirement also applies to, but is not limited to the plugging of 
wells, the exploring for, producing, marketing, and transporting of petroleum products, 
and the disposition and removal of any byproducts utilized and associated with said 
activities.  
 

I. Associated Permits and Approvals. Special use approval for the drilling, completion, or 
operation of oil or gas wells or other wells drilled for oil or gas exploration purposes is in 
addition to and are not in lieu of any permit or plan which may be required by any other 
provision of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, Building and Fire Codes, or by any other 
governmental agency, unless expressly outlined. 

 
J. Operations 

1. Permitted Construction Activity Hours. Site preparation and construction of well 
sites are limited to the hours of 7 am to 8 pm. Construction activities associated 
with establishing of the well sites may be eligible for an exception by the Building 
Department in accordance with the City’s Special Hours Work Permit if such 
activities are in compliance with applicable laws and permits.   
 

2. The movement of drilling rigs, tanker trucks or heavy equipment used in 
connection with the drilling or operation of oil or gas wells over public roads and 
streets, shall be consistent with the City’s Traffic Engineer’s approval, which shall 
be obtained in advance. The City’s Traffic Engineer shall identify the streets 
which may be used and any conditions that may apply.  

 
3. All brine, mud, slush, saltwater, chemicals, wastewater, chemical, fluids or waste 

produced or used in the drilling or production of oil or gas shall be safely, lawfully 
and properly disposed of to prevent infiltration of or damage to any fresh water 
well, groundwater, watercourse, pond, lake or wetland. 
 

4. The oil or gas well site shall be kept in a clean and orderly condition, free of trash 
and debris, with weeds cut. Machinery and equipment not being used in the 
operation of the well shall not be stored or kept at the well site.  
 

5. An oil or gas well shall include measures or controls satisfactory to the City 
Engineer to prevent migration, run-off or discharge of any hazardous materials, 
including but not limited to any chemicals, oil or gas produced or used in the 
drilling or production of oil or gas, to adjoining property or to the City of Troy 
sanitary sewer system, stormwater system or any natural or artificial 
watercourse, pond, lake or wetland. There shall be no off-site discharge of storm 
water except to an approved drainage system in accordance with the City’s 
engineering requirements.  

 
K. Inspection. The Building Official, and any other designee of the City Manager, shall have 

the right and privilege at any time during the construction phase and any drilling 
operation to enter upon the premises covered by the special use approval for the 
purpose of making inspections to determine if the requirements of this section are 
complied with or the requirements of any other code or ordinance of the City are met.  

L. Injection wells. Injection wells used for brine disposal or other chemicals from production 
wells or from other sources shall be expressly prohibited within the City. 
 



M. Pipelines. No operator shall excavate or construct any lines for the conveyance of fuel, 
water, oil, gas or petroleum liquids on, under, or through the streets, alleys or other 
properties owned by the City without an easement or right-of-way license from the City. 
 

N. Submittal Requirements.  In addition to submittal requirements for a Site Plan as set 
forth in Article 8 and Special Use as set forth in Article 9, the following information shall 
be submitted as part of the application:  

 
1. Environmental Impact Statement.  Applicant shall submit an Environmental 

Impact Statement filed with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 
in connection with a well permit under Part 615 of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, MCL 524.61501, et seq, and the administrative 
rules promulgated under Part 615, as amended. 

 
2. Hydrogeological analysis.   

 
3. Emergency Response Plan.   Pursuant to State and Federal law, the operator 

shall provide any information necessary to assist the City Emergency Services 
Department with an emergency response plan and hazardous materials survey 
establishing written procedures to minimize any hazard resulting from the 
operation.  The Emergency Response Plan should include emergency contact 
information.   
 

4. Reclamation Plan.  A written statement that describes how the land will be 
returned to a stable and productive condition post drilling operations.    
 

5. Operations Plan to include:  
i. Site ingress/egress 
ii. Haul Route Map.   Vehicle Routes for Truck Traffic. Construction vehicles and 

commercial trucks, associated with drilling and/or production operations shall 
be restricted to roads designated by the City Engineer. 

iii. Hours of Operation.  State listed hours of operation. 
iv. Soil Erosion, Mud and Dust Control Plan. 
v. Noise Control Plan.  Prior to the granting of special use approval and the 

commencement of operations, the petitioner shall submit a noise 
management plan, detailing how the equipment used in the drilling, 
completion, transportation, or production of a well complies with the 
maximum permissible noise levels of the Zoning Ordinance. If Special Use 
Approval is granted, the Petitioner shall be responsible for verifying 
compliance with this section and the noise management plan after the 
installation of the equipment. The noise management plan shall: 
i. Identify operational noise impacts 
ii. Provide documentation establishing the ambient noise level prior to 

construction. 
iii. Detail how the impacts will be mitigated. In determining noise mitigation, 

specific site characteristics shall be considered, including but not limited 
to the following: 

1. Nature and proximity of adjacent development, location, and type 
2. Seasonal and prevailing weather patterns, including wind 

directions 
3. Vegetative cover on or adjacent to the site 



4. Topography 
vi. Odor and Fume Control Plan 
vii. Pollution Prevention Plan 
viii. Impact Mitigation Plan 
ix. Monitoring controls.    

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect seven (7) days after 
publication, which shall be published within 15 days of adoption, as required the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 247 Oil and Gas Extraction\CC Public Hearing Draft.doc 



A
D

A
M

S

FOURTEEN MILE

MAPLE

M
A

IN

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

O
N

BIG BEAVER

SQUARE LAKE

WATTLES

SOUTH BLVD

LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
O

O
L

ID
G

E

L
IV

E
R

N
O

IS

JO
H

N
 R

Properties Zoned IB

and 5 Acres or greater

I

§̈¦75



A natural gas rig utilizing hydraulic fracturing or fracking in southwestern Pennsylvania. Andrew Harrer/Bloomberg News. 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 23, 2015 
  

 
 

1 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 247) 

– Oil and Gas Extraction 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a PowerPoint presentation. He addressed the proposed regulations 
as relates to: 

 Zoning District 

 Special Use permit 

 Minimum lot size and setbacks 

 Screening and lighting 

 Potential oil and gas sites (map) 

 Nuisance performance standards 

 Submittal requirements 

 Comparison with Rochester Hills regulations 
 
Mr. Motzny addressed the proposed regulations with respect to the constitutionality and 
non-exclusionary aspects of the law.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jennifer Halucha of 3219 Abington would like the City to strengthen its proposed 
regulations. She addressed regulations imposed by other communities. 
 
Lois Pylat of 2378 Topaz encouraged members of government to contact Lansing in an 
effort to stop fracking. She addressed the potential for health consequences. 
 
Cynthia Khan of 6902 Aurora addressed the dependency on other countries for energy 
and encouraged the use of our country’s resources. 
 
Toni Kovach of 2370 Topaz would like the City to strengthen the proposed regulations 
and provide protection of those who are in ill health. 
 
Michael Ross of 152 Randall addressed the viable direction in which our country needs 
to go to stabilize its borders and international economy. 
 
John Griffin of American Petroleum Institute, 124 W Allegan, Lansing, encouraged 
interested parties to learn more about the extraction of oil and fracking before speaking 
negatively on the matter. He addressed permitting in Troy, geological findings in 
Oakland County, protection of property rights and State regulations. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 23, 2015 
  

 
 

2 
 

Chair Edmunds encouraged residents to contact their State legislators. 
 
Mr. Savidant advised the audience the Planning Commission is the recommending body 
for a proposed text amendment and a Public Hearing will be scheduled at a future City 
Council meeting for consideration. 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-06-040 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Kuppa 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles 2, 4, and 6 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes 
miscellaneous provisions related to oil and gas extraction, be amended as printed on 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 



 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

 
Date:  July 8, 2015 
 
To:   Mayor and City Council Members 
   
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
M. Aileen Dickson, City Clerk 
Cathleen Russ, Library Director 

   
Subject: Timeline for Library Millage Question, November 3, 2015 City General Election 
 
Background: 
 
On Tuesday, August 2, 2011, Troy voters approved a five-year, dedicated millage of 0.7 mills for the 
purpose of funding operations of the Troy Public Library. The term of this millage is July 1, 2011 
through June 30, 2016.  
 
When the Financial Ideas Team (FIT) met on April 23, 2015, the participants discussed three funding 
scenarios, and consensed that the issue of Troy Public Library funding should be resolved with a 
renewal of the existing dedicated millage of 0.7 mills. At the Budget Study Session on April 27, City 
Administration and City Council discussed three funding scenarios for continued operations of the 
Troy Public Library: 
 
1. Renew 0.7 mills  
and 
2. Use Library Fund Balance for Library 

Materials 
and 
3. Capital Subsidy from City of Troy (if 

needed) (Average $170,000 Annually) 
 

1. Renew 0.7 mills 
and 
2. Use Library Fund Balance for 

Library Materials 
and 
3. An Additional 0.04 mills (Eliminate 

Capital Fund Subsidy) 
 

1. Funded through the City’s 
General Fund  

 

 
To continue funding the operations of the Troy Public Library for the next five years, the Financial 
Ideas Team and City Administration recommend that City Council approve placement of a ballot 
question, as suggested in the first scenario, for renewal of the Troy Public Library Operating Millage 
Proposal in the amount of 0.7 mills for the November 3, 2015 ballot. If renewed, the term of the 
renewed dedicated Library millage would be July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2021. As per the first scenario, 
Library Materials would be purchased utilizing Library Fund Balance and, if needed, a Capital Subsidy 
would be transferred from the City of Troy Capital Fund for building improvements. Proposed ballot 
language will be included on the next Regular City Council Agenda of July 20, 2015. 
 
Election Timeline: 
 

dicksona
Text Box
K-02a



 

 

2 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

The regularly scheduled City General Election will be held on Tuesday, November 3, 2015. The ballot 
for this election already contains the contests for Mayor, 3 Council Members and 1 partial-term 
Council Member. The following timeline highlights important dates prior to the November 3, 2015 City 
General Election: 

 
 July 20: City Council Regular Meeting prior to deadline where Council could vote on 

proposal language 

 August 10: Last Regular City Council Meeting prior to deadline where Council could vote 
on proposal language 

 August 10, August 24, September 14: If requested, Council could vote on content 
neutral mailer explaining Yes/No on proposal question  

 August 11, 2015 4:00PM: Deadline to submit certified millage proposal language to 
County Clerk (Elections Division) 

 November 3: City General Election Day 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JUNE 3, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

Mr. Abitheira called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on June 3, 2015 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Gary Abitheira 
Brian Kischnick 
Michael Morris 
Andrew Schuster 
 
Absent: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Morris 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 6, 2015 Regular meeting as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, RANDY HUYCK OF ACTION FENCE, 1804 WOODGATE 

– This property is a double front corner lot. As such it has a 25 foot required front 
setback along both Woodgate and Crestline. The petitioner is requesting a variance 
to install a 4 foot high non-obscuring chain link fence along the Crestline property 
line where City Code limits fences to 30 inches high. The variance request was an 
item on the May 6, 2015 meeting. The property owner requested to postpone the 
item to the June 3, 2015 meeting so concerns of neighbors could be addressed. 
 
The property owner Tony Iacona proposed to locate the fence just past the deck, 
about 8 feet from the house and roughly 15 feet back from the sidewalk. He offered 
written confirmation from two neighbors stating their agreement with the proposed 
new location. 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01a



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JUNE 3, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance to install the fence 8 feet out from the house line 
parallel to the sidewalk, for the following reason: 
 
1. Due to the unique property and the undue hardship it is creating, the variance 

minimizes the impact and the neighbors are in support. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, DANIEL HEILEMAN OF HEILEMAN SIGNS, 1821 
MAPLELAWN – A variance to allow a 24.1 foot tall, 159 square foot ground sign to 
be set back 17 feet from the front property line. The Sign Code requires a 30 foot 
minimum setback for the proposed sign. The item was incorrectly publicized for the 
May 6, 2015. The request has been correctly publicized and scheduled for the June 3, 
2015 meeting. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received no written responses to the public 
hearing notices. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Schuster 
Support by: Morris 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested, for the following reason: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 

intent of Chapter 85. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JUNE 3, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, IHOR “IKE” KUCZER, 5397 CLOISTER – This property is 
a double front corner lot. As such it has a 30 foot required front setback along both 
Cloister and Sweet. The petitioner is requesting a variance to install a 6 foot high 
privacy fence set back 10 feet from the Sweet property line where City Code limits 
fences to 30 inches high.  
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received three written responses to the public 
hearing notices; two in support, one in opposition based on principal only. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested, for the following reasons: 
 

1. For the public health, safety and welfare. 
2. The property and community are not impacted. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Kischnick asked the record to reflect that screening and containment of the 
subject property should have been overseen at the Planning Commission level and 
that this variance should definitely be granted. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, ERIC CURRY OF ASI SIGNAGE INNOVATIONS, TROY 
LIBRARY, 500-520 W BIG BEAVER – A variance from the Sign Code to replace 
the existing Library ground sign with a 50 square foot ground sign. Chapter 85 limits 
the Civic Center campus to two signs. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received no written responses to the public 
hearing notices. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JUNE 3, 2015 
 
 

4 
 

Moved by: Schuster 
Support by: Morris 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested provided the sign is located outside 
the required 25 foot corner clearance triangular area.  
 
Yes: Abitheira, Morris, Schuster 
Abstain: Kischnick 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Grusnick announced a new format in preparing Board minutes. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Gary Abitheira, Acting Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2015\Draft\2015 06 03 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JUNE 3, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

Mr. Abitheira called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on June 3, 2015 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Gary Abitheira 
Brian Kischnick 
Michael Morris 
Andrew Schuster 
 
Absent: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Morris 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 6, 2015 Regular meeting as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, RANDY HUYCK OF ACTION FENCE, 1804 WOODGATE 

– This property is a double front corner lot. As such it has a 25 foot required front 
setback along both Woodgate and Crestline. The petitioner is requesting a variance 
to install a 4 foot high non-obscuring chain link fence along the Crestline property 
line where City Code limits fences to 30 inches high. The variance request was an 
item on the May 6, 2015 meeting. The property owner requested to postpone the 
item to the June 3, 2015 meeting so concerns of neighbors could be addressed. 
 
The property owner Tony Iacona proposed to locate the fence just past the deck, 
about 8 feet from the house and roughly 15 feet back from the sidewalk. He offered 
written confirmation from two neighbors stating their agreement with the proposed 
new location. 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01b



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JUNE 3, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance to install the fence 8 feet out from the house line 
parallel to the sidewalk, for the following reason: 
 
1. Due to the unique property and the undue hardship it is creating, the variance 

minimizes the impact and the neighbors are in support. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, DANIEL HEILEMAN OF HEILEMAN SIGNS, 1821 
MAPLELAWN – A variance to allow a 24.1 foot tall, 159 square foot ground sign to 
be set back 17 feet from the front property line. The Sign Code requires a 30 foot 
minimum setback for the proposed sign. The item was incorrectly publicized for the 
May 6, 2015. The request has been correctly publicized and scheduled for the June 3, 
2015 meeting. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received no written responses to the public 
hearing notices. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Schuster 
Support by: Morris 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested, for the following reason: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 

intent of Chapter 85. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JUNE 3, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, IHOR “IKE” KUCZER, 5397 CLOISTER – This property is 
a double front corner lot. As such it has a 30 foot required front setback along both 
Cloister and Sweet. The petitioner is requesting a variance to install a 6 foot high 
privacy fence set back 10 feet from the Sweet property line where City Code limits 
fences to 30 inches high.  
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received three written responses to the public 
hearing notices; two in support, one in opposition based on principal only. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested, for the following reasons: 
 

1. For the public health, safety and welfare. 
2. The property and community are not impacted. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Kischnick asked the record to reflect that screening and containment of the 
subject property should have been overseen at the Planning Commission level and 
that this variance should definitely be granted. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, ERIC CURRY OF ASI SIGNAGE INNOVATIONS, TROY 
LIBRARY, 500-520 W BIG BEAVER – A variance from the Sign Code to replace 
the existing Library ground sign with a 50 square foot ground sign. Chapter 85 limits 
the Civic Center campus to two signs. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received no written responses to the public 
hearing notices. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 9, 2015 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on June 9, 2015 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Ollie Apahidean Padma Kuppa 
Karen Crusse John J. Tagle 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-06-031 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-06-032 
Moved by: Apahidean 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 26, 2015 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 9, 2015 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 1001) – Proposed Revisions to 
Building Elevations, Northeast corner of Big Beaver and Talbot (335 E Big Beaver), 
Section 22, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented proposed elevation revisions for the Qdoba tenant at 335 E. Big 
Beaver, noting the changes are significant and must go before the Planning Commission 
for consideration and approval. 
 
Present were Bill Chalmers, Project Manager with DA Contracting LLC, and Anne Knuth, 
Senior Real Estate Manager with Qdoba. There was discussion on the new Qdoba 
building prototype and proposed elevations. Samples of building material and store interior 
were circulated. 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-06-033 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the revisions to the Qdoba building elevations, located on 
the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Talbot (335 E. Big Beaver), Section 22, within 
the BB (Big Beaver) District, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 1006) – Proposed Maple 

Veterinary Hospital Addition, South of Maple, West of Dequindre (2981 Iowa), Section 
36, Currently Zoned NN (Neighborhood Node) “B” 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the revisions to the site plan as relates to building material 
selection and consistency of the new addition to the existing building. Mr. Carlisle 
recommended Preliminary Site Plan Approval with the conditions as noted in his report 
dated June 4, 2015, should the Planning Commission find the architectural 
improvements sufficient and concur with the requested parking deviation. 
 
Dr. Michael Derkevorkian addressed the different roof lines. He advised the Board it is 
his intent to seek a sidewalk waiver. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 9, 2015 
  
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # PC-2015-06-034 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Maple Veterinary Hospital Addition and 
parking deviation, located south of Maple and west of Dequindre (2981 Iowa), Section 
36, within the NN (Neighborhood Node) District (Node “B”), be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 
1. Provide sidewalk along Iowa Drive or seek waiver. 
2. Provide detailed landscape plan for final site plan approval. 
 
Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmonds, Krent, Sanzica, Strat 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Kuppa, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson said he is disappointed with the proposed architecture. 

 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 1007) – Proposed Evangel Baptist 

Church of Troy Auditorium, South of Maple, West of Dequindre (2900 Lovington), Section 36, 
Currently Zoned RT (One Family Attached Residential) and IB (Integrated Industrial and 
Business) Districts 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan application. He addressed the parking lot 
layout, stormwater management, lighting and elevations. Mr. Carlisle said there are 14 
outstanding items noted in his report. He suggested the Planning Commission in its 
consideration of the application give direction to the applicant and request the applicant 
to come back with revisions to the site plan. 
 
Saber Kassab of SK Properties and an Evangel Baptist Church member addressed the 
temporary parking lot. Mr. Kassab indicated the architect for the project is working on 
the issues cited by the Planning Consultant and assured compliance with all the 
outstanding items. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Frontage of church property; reflection of church. 
 Stormwater management features. 
 Staff cooperation to work with applicant. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 9, 2015 
  
 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2015-06-035 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the Preliminary Site Plan application for the proposed 
Evangel Baptist Church of Troy Auditorium located south of Maple, west of Dequindre 
(2900 Lovington), Section 36, within the RT (One Family Attached Residential) and IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) Districts, to allow the applicant the opportunity to 
address items identified in the Planning Consultant report dated June 3, 2015 and 
submit revised plans. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 998) – Proposed Murray Plaza, 

West side of Rochester between Vanderpool and Trombley (3385 Rochester), Section 
22, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan application and commended the 
applicant for his good faith effort to work with the department. Mr. Carlisle addressed 
the limitation of retail use on the site, noting a more intense use such as a restaurant 
would require additional parking. He recommended Preliminary Site Plan approval with 
conditions as noted in his report, dated June 3, 2015. 
 
Hassane Oseili and Adnan Al-Saati of A&M Consultants were present. A revised site 
plan was presented for the Board’s consideration this evening. The following revisions 
were addressed: 
 Greenbelt increased by 12 feet. 
 Parking lot drive aisle reduced to 24 feet. 
 Loading area increased to 40 feet in length. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Functionality of concrete slab. 
 Confirmation of front and rear entrances for each retail use. 
 Additional landscaping encouraged in greenbelt. 
 Parking deviation required with a more intense use tenant. 
 Justification to postpone item. 
 
The applicant circulated building material samples. 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JULY 1, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

Mr. Abitheira called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on June 3, 2015 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Gary Abitheira 
Brian Kischnick 
Michael Morris 
Andrew Schuster 
 
Absent: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Maggie Hughes, Management Assistant 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Morris 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 3, 2015 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, FARQAD KHALIL, 643 E LONG LAKE – A variance to 

install a non-obscuring masonry and metal fence and gate ranging in height from 4 
to 6 feet across the front property line adjacent to Long Lake Road. The Fence 
Code limits the height of fences in front yards to 30 inches. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received four written responses to the public 
hearing notices; two in support, two in opposition. 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01d



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JULY 1, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the variance request to install a non-obscuring masonry 
and metal fence and gate ranging in height from 4 to 6 feet set back 4 feet from the 
Long Lake property line, and to landscape significantly between the sidewalk and 
the fence as not to interfere today and 15 years from now with traffic on the 
sidewalk, for the following reason: 
 
1. The petitioner has a hardship resulting from the physical nature of the layout of 

the lot. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, MATTHEW JAMES KIDWELL, 3938 GATE – This property 
is a double front corner lot. As such it has a 30 foot required front setback along 
both Gate and Genick. The petitioner is requesting a variance to install a 6 foot high 
privacy fence along the Genick property line where City Code limits fences to non-
obscuring and 30 inches high. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received nine written responses to the public 
hearing notices; all in opposition. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the variance request to install a 6 foot high privacy fence 
along the Genick property line to be set back 24 feet from the Genick property line 
all the way across, for the following reason: 
 
1. The petitioner has a hardship or practical difficulty resulting from the unusual 

characteristics of the property that precludes reasonable use of the property. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JULY 1, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, JOE GLASER OF LOWES, 2914 ENGLISH – This property 
is a double front corner lot. As such it has a 30 foot required front setback along both 
English and Windmill. The petitioner is requesting a variance to install a 6 foot high 
privacy fence along the Windmill property line where City Code limits fences to non-
obscuring and 30 inches high. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received no written responses to the public 
hearing notices. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no one 
present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Morris 
Support by: Kischnick 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the variance request to install a 6 foot high privacy fence 
set back 5 feet from the Windmill property line, and to landscape between the 
sidewalk and fence, for the following reason: 
 

1. The petitioner has a hardship resulting from the unusual characteristics of the 
property and the presence of an existing pool. 

 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Dziurman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 4:03 p.m. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JULY 1, 2015 
 
 

4 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Gary Abitheira, Acting Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2015\Draft\2015 07 01 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 





stewartc
Text Box
P-02a





 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
Date:  July 13, 2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
      
Subject: Great Lakes Water Authority Update 
 

 

On September 9, 2014 a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding the formation of the Great 
Lakes Water Authority (GLWA) was signed by representatives of the City of Detroit, Wayne County, 
Oakland County, Macomb County and the Governor of the State of Michigan. The MOU is attached. 
 
This MOU was the foundation for development of the following leases and service agreement that 
were signed and executed on June 12, 2015: 

 Regional Sewage Disposal System Lease 

 Regional Water Supply System Lease 

 Water and Sewer Services Agreement 
 
While the leases were executed they do not become effective without the completion of conditions 
precedent including bondholder consents, contract assignments, permit transfers, Master Bond 
Ordinance, etc. and they must become effective no later than January 1, 2016. 
 
The City of Troy’s City Clerk received a letter dated June 25, 2015 regarding a “Request for Consent 
to Assignment of Water Contract”. The action requested is to authorize the reassignment of the water 
contract between Detroit Water and Sewerage Department (DWSD) and the City of Troy to the Great 
Lakes Water Authority. This requires authorization by a City of Troy City Council resolution. 
 
Upon receiving this letter city staff conducted a meeting with Bob Daddow, Oakland County Deputy 
Executive and GLWA Board Chair, to discuss the history and what this means for the City of Troy and 
the suburban water customers. The following staff attended the meeting: City Manager Brian 
Kischnick, Finance Director Tom Darling, DPW Director Tim Richnak, Superintendent of Water and 
Sewer Paul Trosper, and Management Analyst Maggie Hughes.  
 
The GLWA and DWSD have scheduled a public meeting on this issue on July 28th at 9:00 am in the 
City of Lathrup Village community room. 
 
City management will be requesting a City Council study session for August 10th at 6:00 pm to 
discuss the transfer of the City of Troy Water Contract. Following that study session a City Council 
Agenda Item and resolution will be placed on a regular City Council meeting for action.  
 
 
TLR/ S: DPW Agenda Items \ Great Lakes Water Authority Update 07.13.15 

stewartc
Text Box
P-02b























 

  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
 

FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Julie Quinlan Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney  
Nicole MacMillan, City Attorney Assistant  
 

DATE: October 6, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:    2015 Third Quarter Litigation Report 

 

 

The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 
interest.  Developments during the THIRD quarter of 2015 are in bold. 

 
A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 

 
Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 

office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will 
be presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized 
in the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
B. ZONING CASES 

 
These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

There are no pending zoning cases for this quarter.  
 

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 

stewartc
Text Box
P-02c



 

 2 

obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects 
to be completed.    

 
1. Troy v. Grand Sakwa et. al.- This condemnation case was initiated on 

December 16, 2013, to re-acquire the 2.7 acre transit center parcel from 
Grand Sakwa after the Michigan Supreme Court denied Troy’s application for 
leave to appeal.  Although the City was deeded the property in 2000, and 
initially prevailed against developer Grand Sakwa’s motion seeking a 
reversion of the property, this decision was reversed by the Michigan Court of 
Appeals on the basis that the transit center was allegedly not funded by the 
June 2, 2010 reversion date in the consent judgment.  Since the Court of 
Appeals decision became final upon the Michigan Supreme Court’s refusal to 
hear the case, the condemnation complaint requests possession dating back 
to June 2, 2010.  The independently appraised value for the property is 
$550,000, which is well below the federal appropriation set aside for the 
project under the Federal Transit Administration.  The City filed a Motion 
seeking an order confirming title and possession, based on the fact that the 
Defendants waived the ability to challenge necessity.  Defendants filed a 
response to this motion, seeking a dismissal of the case based on the fact 
that the property appraisal date was for 2010 (the date of reversion as 
declared by the Court of Appeals opinion).  The Court entered a dismissal 
order on February 21, 2014, based on his conclusion that there needed to be 
an appraisal of the improved property as of 2014 (the date of filing the 
condemnation case).  The City immediately requested an amended appraisal.  
A new purchase offer was extended, based on the amended appraisal.  The 
Court granted the City’s request for an order of possession of the property on 
August 15, 2014.  Discovery continues.  Trial is now scheduled for August 24, 
2015. Trial was adjourned until October 26, 2015.   

 
2. Troy v Behunin, et al – This condemnation case was initiated on December 2, 

2014 to acquire needed right of way from property owned by Kathleen and 
Michael Behunin.  The property is located on John R. Road, between Square 
Lake Road and South Boulevard.  The case was assigned to Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Martha Anderson.  A hearing is set for January 14, 2015 
at which the City will request an Order of Possession.  On January 14, 2015, 
the Court granted the City’s request for an order of possession.  The case will 
proceed on the issue of just compensation.  The parties are preparing 
documents to facilitate discovery exchange.       

 
D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 

 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the 
City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   
 



 

 3 

1.  Burley v. Gagacki. This is an excessive force case filed against a Troy police 
officer who was participating on a federal task force executing search 
warrants.  The task force divided up and simultaneously executed search 
warrants on two houses located some distance from each other.  Plaintiffs 
argue that they were injured by unidentified task force members at one of the 
houses. The incident report fails to specify which task force members were at 
Plaintiff’s house and which task force members were simultaneously 
executing the search warrant at the other house.  The Troy police officer and 
other task force members were initially represented by an Assistant U.S. 
Attorney, who obtained a dismissal of the case.  Plaintiffs then successfully 
appealed to the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals, which reinstated the case.  
The second trial is scheduled for February 2014.  Due to a retirement of the 
Assistant U.S. Attorney and the possibility of conflicts between the task force 
team members, our office has assumed a more active role in the litigation, 
and will defend the Troy police officer task force member.   The Court granted 
the request of one of the co-defendants to adjourn the trial, which is now 
scheduled to start on June 16, 2014.  The parties have been addressing 
procedural items and preparing for trial.  After picking a jury on June 10, 2014 
and intense preparation for trial to begin on June 16, 2014, one of the 
Plaintiffs was hospitalized four days before the scheduled trial date.  Trial has 
been rescheduled for October 6, 2014.  The parties are preparing for the jury 
trial to begin on October 6, 2014.  A week long jury trial was conducted from 
October 6, 2014 through October 15, 2014, in Federal District Court.  After 
deliberating for 30 minutes, the jury returned a verdict of no cause of action, 
dismissing the case against the task force officers.  The Judge also ordered 
payment of costs to all Defendants.  Plaintiffs subsequently filed an appeal 
with the Sixth Circuit- U.S. Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ appellate brief is due 
in April 2015. The Court of Appeals issued a briefing schedule in this matter.  
Plaintiff-Appellant’s brief was filed on May 18, 2015, and the Troy Defendant-
Appellee’s brief is due on July 3, 2015. 

 
2. Terrell v City of Troy, et al. Terrell Bishop filed a lawsuit against the City and 

individual Troy police officers and fire department employees, as well as 
Oakland County individuals and entities.  The lawsuit is based on the City’s 
investigation and prosecution of Plaintiff for arson and aggravated stalking.  
Plaintiff filed the case in Oakland County Circuit Court and it was assigned to 
Judge Phyllis McMillen.  Plaintiff alleges false evidence was used against him 
and that defendants violated his constitutional rights.  He claims he was 
unlawfully arrested and falsely imprisoned.  He argues that he was deprived 
of life, liberty, and property without due process of law and that he was denied 
his right to equal protection of the law.  Plaintiff brings this lawsuit under 42 
USC Section 1983, seeking damages in excess of 30 million dollars.  He is 
representing himself.  The City will file a motion for summary disposition as its 
first responsive pleading, which is due on or before July 8, 2015. 

 



 

 4 

3. Hammond v. City of Troy, et al.  LeDell Hammond filed a lawsuit against the 
City of Troy, the Troy Police Department, 52-4 District Court, A&M Service 
Center & Towing, and Secretary of State in United States District Court, 
Eastern District/Southern Division. The case has been assigned to Judge 
Paul Borman. The lawsuit stems from the removal of Plaintiff’s vehicle by the 
Troy Police Department. Mr. Hammond’s 2005 Grand Prix was seized in 
August 2014, as part of an on-going armed robbery investigation. Plaintiff 
brings this lawsuit under 42 USC Section 1983, alleging Fourth, Fifth, and 
Fourteenth Amendment violations, as well as a violation of MCL 257.252, a 
RICO claim, and a negligence claim. In addition to Plaintiff’s Complaint, he 
also filed an emergency motion requesting the Court grant a temporary 
restraining order to prevent the Troy Police Department from auctioning his 
vehicle. The City filed a timely response in opposition of Plaintiff’s request for 
a temporary restraining order. The Court has not yet decided this issue. The 
City also intends to file a motion to dismiss as its first responsive pleading to 
Plaintiff’s Complaint. 

 
E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 

 
These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 

negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City 
enjoys governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within 
one of four exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, 
which includes sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which 
imposes liability only when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor 
vehicle exception, which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when 
operating their vehicle; d) proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an 
activity is conducted primarily to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury 
or damage to another; e)  trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the 
flooding cases.     

   
1. Allstate Insurance Company v. City of Troy and Troy Fire Department.  This is a 

subrogation case, filed by Allstate Insurance Company against the City of Troy 

Fire Department, seeking reimbursement of Allstate’s payment to its insured 

Rajkiran Panesar.  Mr. Panesar’s vehicle was damaged when he unexpectedly 

drove onto a fire hose that had fallen from a Troy Fire truck after dark on October 

21, 2013.  The Answer and Affirmative Defenses to the Complaint were due on 

July 17, 2014. The City filed a Motion for Summary Disposition on July 31, 2014 

arguing that governmental immunity shielded the City from liability, and therefore 

the City was entitled to a dismissal of this case.  Prior to entertaining this motion, 

Judge Asadoorian scheduled case evaluation for October 14, 2014.  The City is 

waiting for the Court to schedule oral arguments on its Motion for Summary 

Disposition.  On December 1, 2014, the Court entered an order denying 

Summary Disposition.  The City filed an interlocutory appeal of this decision on 

December 5, 2014, which was assigned to Oakland County Circuit Court Judge 



 

 5 

Leo Bowman.  On December 18, prior to the receipt of the transcript or the lower 

court file, Judge Bowman dismissed the appeal, characterizing it as an 

application for leave to appeal instead of an appeal of right from a denial of 

governmental immunity.  Instead of filing an application for leave to appeal with 

the Michigan Court of Appeals, the parties will proceed to trial, which is 

scheduled for February 20, 2015. This case proceeded to a bench trial, resulting 

in a verdict of $10,230.  The City appealed the Court’s denial of governmental 

immunity, and the case has now been assigned to Oakland County Circuit Court 

Judge Shalina Kumar. The City timely filed an appellate brief with the Oakland 

County Circuit Court. The Court scheduled oral argument on the appeal for July 

15, 2015.      

F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 
 

1. Michigan Association of Home Builders; Associated Builders and Contractors of 
Michigan; and Michigan Plumbing and Mechanical Contractors Association v. 
City of Troy – The Plaintiffs filed a complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief 
in the Oakland County Circuit.  On the date of filing the Plaintiffs also filed a 
Motion for Preliminary Injunction and Order to Show Cause.  The Plaintiffs allege 
that the City of Troy has violated Section 22 of Michigan’s Stille-DeRossett Hale 
Single State Construction Code Act by collecting fees for building department 
services that are not reasonably related to the cost of providing building 
department services.  They are alleging that the City of Troy has illegally entered 
into a contract with Safe Built of Michigan, Inc. for building services that provides 
that 20% of each building permit fee be returned to the City to cover services that 
are not “reasonably related to the cost of building department services,” as 
required by state statute.  The Plaintiffs also assert a violation of the Headlee 
Amendment, arguing that the 20% returned to the City is a disguised tax that was 
not approved by voters.  The Plaintiffs are asking for a declaratory judgment, as 
well as a return of any “surplus” building department service funds collected to 
date.  Plaintiffs also request an order requiring the City to reduce its building 
department fees.  The City of Troy was served with the Complaint and the Motion 
for Preliminary Injunction and Order for Show Cause on Wednesday, December 
15, 2010. The parties were required to appear at Court on Wednesday, 
December 22, 2010, but the Court did not take any action at that time.  Instead, 
the Court adjourned the matter to January 19, 2011.  In the interim, the parties 
may engage in preliminary discovery in an attempt to resolve this matter. The 
parties are conducting discovery.   The parties have completed discovery.  Trial 
in this matter is scheduled for January 30, 2012.  After being presented with 
motions for summary disposition, the Court ordered the parties to engage in 
mediation with a neutral municipal audit professional.  Financial documents 
concerning this case are now being reviewed by an independent CPA.  It is 
expected that the April 19, 2012 trial date will be postponed until after this review 
is complete.  Mediation was unsuccessful in resolving this case, and therefore 



 

 6 

the Court is expected to issue an order on the pending Summary Disposition 
Motions.  The trial date has been adjourned.   On November 13, 2012, Oakland 
County Circuit Court Judge Shalina Kumar issued her order in favor of the City, 
and dismissed this case.  Plaintiffs filed an appeal, which is now pending in the 
Michigan Court of Appeals.  Appellant’s brief is expected to be filed soon. The 
parties timely filed their appellate briefs, and are now waiting for the Court of 
Appeals to schedule a date for oral argument. The Court of Appeals has not yet 
scheduled oral argument for this case.  The parties are still waiting for a date for 
oral argument.  Oral argument was held on March 4, 2014.  On March 13, 2014, 
the Court of Appeals issued its opinion ruling in the City’s favor and affirming the 
Circuit Court’s decision dismissing the case.  On April 23, 2014, Plaintiff Home 
Builders filed an Application for Leave to Appeal with the Michigan Supreme 
Court.  Troy’s response was filed on May 19, 2014. The Michigan Supreme Court 
considered the application for leave to appeal and ordered that the matter be 
scheduled for oral argument.  The Court also permitted the parties to submit 
supplemental briefs, which are due October 29, 2014.  The City timely filed its 
supplemental brief with the Michigan Supreme Court.  The parties are now 
waiting for the Court to set a date for oral argument on the application.  The 
Michigan Supreme Court entertained oral arguments on the application for leave 
to appeal on March 11, 2015.  On June 4, 2015, the Michigan Supreme Court 
reversed the decisions of the Court of Appeals and the Circuit Court and ruled 
there was no requirement for Plaintiffs to exhaust their administrative remedies.  
The case was remanded to Circuit Court for further proceedings. A status 
conference was held on June 18, 2015 with Judge Kumar.  During the status 
conference, Judge Kumar scheduled a hearing for September 2, 2015, allowing 
the parties to address the issues that were previously raised in the motion for 
summary disposition but were not decided since the case was initially dismissed 
for failure to exhaust administrative remedies.   

 
2. Todd Michael v. City of Troy et. al.   Todd Michael has filed this lawsuit against 

the City, the Troy Police Department and the Troy Police Chief.  Through this 
lawsuit, Plaintiff alleges that he was discriminated against in his employment with 
the City, in violation of the Americans With Disabilities Act. He also alleges that 
he suffered retaliation for his alleged disability.  He is asking to be reinstated as a 
Troy Police Officer.  He is also asking for additional compensation, punitive 
damages, costs and attorney fees.  The answer to the complaint and affirmative 
defenses were filed on September 27, 2012.  The Court has issued a scheduling 
order in this case, and discovery is on-going.   The parties are continuing in the 
discovery phase.  The Court has extended the discovery cut off in this matter, 
and the parties continue to take depositions in this case.  The City will be filing a 
Motion for Summary Judgment.  A Motion for Summary Judgment was filed on 
October 14, 2013.  Plaintiff filed its Response on November 21, 2013, and the 
City’s reply brief was filed on December 12, 2013.  The parties are still waiting for 
the Court to either issue an opinion or schedule a date for oral argument on the 
Motion.   The Court transferred the case to newly appointed U.S. District Court 
Judge Judith Levy, who has scheduled oral argument on the motion for summary 



 

 7 

judgment for July 10, 2014.  Subsequent to oral argument, the Court entered an 
order on July 23, 2014 dismissing Police Chief Gary Mayer and Count II as to all 
parties.  The Court is expected to issue an order as to the first Count of Plaintiff’s 
Complaint.  On October 21, 2014, the Court entered its order in favor of the City, 
dismissing the case.  Plaintiff subsequently filed an appeal with the Sixth Circuit 
Court of Appeals.  Plaintiff/ Appellant’s Corrected Brief was filed on March 6, 
2015.  The City’s brief was filed on April 7, 2015.  Oral argument is set for July 
29, 2015. 

 
3. Daniel E. Katayama v City of Troy. Plaintiff filed this lawsuit under the Freedom of 

Information Act (FOIA) claiming that the City did not fully comply with a FOIA request 
he submitted on March 26, 2013.  Plaintiff’s FOIA request sought particular 
documents related to his arrest on suspicion of driving while intoxicated.  The City 
filed an Answer to the Complaint, and the parties are conducting discovery.  
Discovery continues. The Court scheduled a mandatory settlement conference for 
March 10, 2014.  The City filed a Motion for Summary Disposition on February 14, 
2014.  The Court scheduled oral argument on this Motion for June 5, 2014.  The 
Court granted in part and denied in part the City’s Motion for Summary Disposition.  
Plaintiff filed a Claim of Appeal in the Michigan Court of Appeals on September 3, 
2014.  A briefing schedule has not been issued by the Court of Appeals.  A timely 
response brief will be filed once the date is set by the Court.  Plaintiff ordered the 
transcript of proceedings, and the date of the receipt of the transcript dictates the 
appellate briefing schedule. The parties are still waiting for the court transcript to be 
completed.    The final transcript was filed with the Court on May 1, 2015.  Plaintiff-
Appellant’s brief was due on May 19, 2015, but has not yet been filed. 

  
4. DiMario v. City of Troy, et al.- Plaintiffs filed this case in Oakland County Circuit Court 

on November 5, 2014 to obtain a vacant piece of land next to Plaintiffs’ home.  
Plaintiffs listed the City of Troy as a Defendant in the case because the City has 
easements on the property. The Plaintiffs also listed D&T Construction, Emerald 
Lakes Pointe Association, and the Oakland County Treasurer as Defendants. The 
City has filed an Answer to the Complaint, and is now waiting for the Court to issue a 
scheduling order.  The Court issued its scheduling order. This case was removed 
from case evaluation through a stipulation of the parties.  Trial is now scheduled for 
September 10, 2015.     
 

5. Jeremey Carter v Oakland County Jail, et al. Plaintiff filed this claim against the City of 
Troy and an individual Troy police officer claiming he was wrongfully arrested and 
incarcerated.  The case was filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern 
District of Michigan and assigned to the Honorable Judge Gershwin Drain who 
ordered Plaintiff to file an Amended Complaint by a date certain.  Plaintiff missed 
his deadline, and a motion to dismiss is pending before the Court awaiting a 
decision.  The parties are still waiting for a Court decision in this case.  

 
 

 



 

 8 

 
6. Dandu and Mosutan v. City of Troy, et al. Plaintiffs filed this Complaint in Oakland 

County Circuit Court against the City of Troy and the Oakland County Treasurer’s 
Office. The case has been assigned to Judge Denise Langford Morris. Mr. Dandu 
purchased a foreclosed property (1369 E. Wattles Road) from Oakland County 
in August 2014, and Mr. Moustan purchased the property from him in October 
2014.  Through the lawsuit, the Plaintiffs are seeking the removal of a past due 
water bill lien in the amount of $17,230.63, since this bill represents charges 
incurred prior to their acquisition of the property.   

 
G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS/ DISTRICT COURT APPEALS  

These are cases involving an appeal from a decision of the 52-4 District 
Court in an ordinance prosecution case. 

 
There are no pending criminal appeals for this Quarter.  

  
 

H.  ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 
  

1. In the matter of the Petitions on National Pollution Discharge Elimination 
Systems (NPDES Phase II General Permits).  The City has joined several other 
municipalities in challenging several of the mandates in the NPDES Phase II 
General Permit, which was recently issued by the MDEQ.  The new NPDES 
permit requires some storm water management techniques that exceed the 
federal mandates, and/or are not justified, based on the high cost of the 
mandate, in relation to the nominal environmental benefits. A status conference 
for the parties is set for October 1, 2008.  The municipalities are currently 
exploring the coordination of efforts with other parties.  Community 
representatives are meeting with representatives from the MDEQ to discuss 
possible resolutions of this matter without the necessity of a full blown 
administrative hearing.   The parties are continuing to negotiate with the MDEQ.  
The City of Riverview filed a class action complaint in the Ingham County Circuit 
Court, challenging the permit requirements as unfunded mandates.  The 
petitioners to the NPDES permit administrative proceeding are named as 
participants in the proposed class action lawsuit.  As a result, the class action 
determination may have an impact on the administrative proceeding. The motion 
for class certification is scheduled for October 15, 2009.  Class certification was 
granted.  Hearings regarding the procedure for the new class action are set for 
January 2010.   The Court granted class action status, and the administrative 
proceedings are now being delayed.  Status reports have been filed and 
reviewed, and we continue to monitor any new developments.  On October 14, 
2010, the Michigan Court of Appeals reversed the order granting a stay of the 
contested cases.  On November 19, 2010, the Ingham County Circuit Court (the 
class action lawsuit) entered an order granting in part the dismissal of some of 
the claims.  The remaining claims, including a Headlee claim, will be decided by 
the Court.  Subsequently, the Assistant Attorney General, on behalf of the 



 

 9 

Michigan Department of Natural Resources and Environment (MDNRE) 
attempted to withdraw all of the remaining NPDES permits, which would mean 
that the whole process would need to be started from scratch.  Since this action 
would likely result in a significant delay and a duplication of all efforts to date, 
several municipalities filed objections to this unilateral action.  The MDNRE was 
given until December 22, 2010 to file a formal motion seeking a dismissal of the 
remaining NPDES permits. On August 9, 2011, the Administrative Law Judge 
held the case in abeyance, due to pending case at the Michigan Court of 
Appeals.  The parties will continue to provide status reports in the interim.  The 
Court is continuing to receiving status reports, with the next one due on 
December 19, 2012.   Status reports were timely filed on January 6, 2013 and 
March 22, 2013. Additional status reports were submitted on June 24 and 25, 
2013.   The Court issued an order on September 10, 2013, continuing to hold the 
matter in abeyance pending resolution of the constitutional issues.  Status 
reports were timely filed on December 18, 2013. Administrative Law Judge 
Plummer issued an order on January 29, 2014, continuing the case in abeyance, 
and ordering quarterly status reports to be filed.  Status reports were filed as of 
the deadline of May 1, 2014.  The case continues to be held in abeyance.  The 
Court issued an order on August 27, 2014, continuing the case in abeyance.  The 
Court has continued to hold this case in abeyance, and has required status 
reports be filed on or before January 30, 2015.   Status reports were timely filed.  
The Administrative Law Judge ordered a status conference, which was held on 
June 24, 2015.  Since the parties could not reach an agreement, the Court 
scheduled an argument on motions for August 24.  

 
If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   



 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORT  

 
July 09, 2015 
 
TO:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
    
SUBJECT: Cities of Southfield and Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority, 

Certified Technology Park; Amended, Restated and Extended Development and 
Tax Increment Financing Plan: Update 

 

 
Work continues to progress on the Cities of Southfield and Troy Joint Local Development Finance 
Authority, Certified Technology Park; Amended, Restated and Extended Development and Tax 
Increment Financing Plan.  The following is a summary of events that are anticipated: 
 

 July 13, 2015 - City of Southfield LDFA Subcommittee meets to review Plan. 

 July 14, 2015 - Cities of Southfield and Troy Joint LDFA and City of Troy LDFA Subcommittee 
meets to review Plan. 

 July 20, 2015 - If the LDFA’s recommend approval, Cities of Southfield and Troy City Councils 
Schedule a Public Hearing for August 24, 2015 for Plan adoption. 

 July 29, 2015 - Notice of Public Hearing transmitted and to be published not later than August 
04 and 11, 2015. 

 August 24, 2015 - Cities of Southfield and Troy City Council Public Hearings to consider 
approval of LDFA Plans. 

 August 24, 2015 - Cities of Southfield and Troy City Councils consider for approval: 
Automation Alley, SmartZone Agreement Amendment Two, By and Between Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation, City of Southfield, City of Troy, Local Development 
Finance Joint Authority of the Cities of Southfield and Troy. 

 August 24, 2015 - Cities of Southfield and Troy City Councils may consider for adoption a 
Service Agreement with Automation Alley. 

 
Attached is a timeline prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
P-02d



Date: November 18, 2014 
Revised: May 12, 2015 
Revised: June 5, 2015 

Revised: June 22, 2015 

Timeline to Amend LDFA Plan* 

r 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 

Jun 

Jul 

Aug 

Sep 

June 3, 2015: 

CWA submitted revised Draft 

Amended and Extended Plan 

July 1 – July 14, 2015: 

Taxing Jurisdiction input 

June 19, 2015: 

CWA to Submit Draft Plan (w/ 

revisions) to LDFA Boards 

August 24, 2015: 

City Council Public Hearing, 

Adoption of Plan, Adoption of 

Automation Alley SmartZone 

Agreement Amendment, 

Adoption of Automation Alley 

Service Agreement 

July 29, 2015: 

Notice of Public Hearing 

(submit ad to newspaper, 

publish no later than 

August 4 and 11) 

October 24, 2015: 

Plan become final 60 days 

after adoption 

October 25 2015: 

Notice to MEDC that 

plan is final 

June 17, 2015: 

Comments due to CWA from 

Staff and City Attorney 

July 14, 2015: 

Meet with Joint LDFA Board 

for approval 

July 21, 2015: 

Meet with individual LDFA 

Boards for approval 

*DATES ARE APPROXIMATE 

September 1, 2015: 

Submit plan to MEDC 

Oct 

July 20, 2015: 

Councils set date of public 

hearing 



stewartc
Text Box
P-03a



stewartc
Text Box
P-03b



stewartc
Text Box
P-05





stewartc
Text Box
P-06




	July 13, 2015 Agenda
	Cover Memo
	Vision Statement & Goals
	2015-16 Top 10 Strategies
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:  Pat Rowland – Woodside Bible Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Presentation to Recognize Dr. Martin Wunsch Who Donated $50,000 to the Troy Public Library on Behalf of the Estate of Lucille Makarov.  The Funds Will Be Used to Make Improvements in Furnishings and Technology in the Youth Services Area, the Teen ...
	C-2 Presentation to Sue Martin, President of the Friends of the Troy Public Library, in Recognition of Funding in the Amount of $111,525 for the 2015-16 Fiscal Year.  The Funding will go Toward Library Programs, Purchasing New Meeting Room Furniture, ...
	C-3 Fireworks Report (Presented by:  Gary Mayer, Chief of Police)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA); b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic District Commission, Traffic Committee
	I-3 No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2015-2018 (Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director)

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 22, 2015

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contract Award – Two (2) Dump Trucks with Snow Removal and Deicing Systems

	J-5 Resolution to Schedule a Special Study Session on Monday, August 10, 2015, to Discuss the Great Lakes Water Authority

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) July 20, 2015 – Rezoning Application – File ZOTA Z 746 – Proposed Troy Fire Station No. 4, North Side of Maple, East of John R (2103 and 2121E. Maple), Section 25 from R-1E (One Family Residential) District to NN ‘C’ (Neighborhood Node ‘C’)
	b) July 20, 2015 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – File ZOTA 247 – Oil & Gas Extraction

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Timeline for Library Millage Question – November 3, 2015 City General Election


	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-June 3, 2015
	b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-June 3, 2015
	c) Planning Commission-Final-June 9, 2015
	d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – July 1, 2015

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Building Department Activity Report – June 2015
	b) Great Lakes Water Authority Update
	c) 2015 Second Quarter Litigation Report
	d) Cities of Southfield and Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority, Certified Technology Park; Amended, Restated and Extended Development and Tax Increment Financing Plan:  Update

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Kurt Bovensiep from the Schoenherr Family Regarding Staff Rescuing a Mallard Duck Family
	b) To Chief Mayer from Stephanie Bergeron, President of Walsh College, Regarding Officer Assistance with Traffic Control at the Commencement Ceremonies Held at Zion Christian Church

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Customers of DTE Electric Co. Case No. U-17772 – Biennial Review of the Energy Optimization Plan
	P-6 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case No. U-17868 – Application to Approve a Refund to its Natural Gas Customers

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	Binder1.pdf
	20150713 Agenda - C-03  Fireworks Presentation
	20150713 Agenda - I-04  Contract Ratification - Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2015-2018
	JM15.075 B. Kischnick - Agenda Item MAP Contract Ratification 2015-07
	TA SUMMARY wChanges compared -MAP 2015-2018
	Tentative Agreement - MAP 2015-06-30

	20150713 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Minutes-Draft - June 22, 2015
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the Months of January and February 2015, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart Will Present a Check in the Amount of $585 to Pam Vanderkerkhove from Cass Community Social S...
	C-2 Service Commendation Presented to Curtis Hsu, Athens High Graduate, 2015 for His Exceptional Volunteer Service to the Troy Community and Beyond (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-3 American Public Works Association Award Project of the Year Award for the 2014 Troy Roads Rock Project Received by Steve Vandette, City Engineer, and Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager (Presented by:  Chuck Hart, APWA President)
	C-4 Elite Fleet Award for City of Troy Fleet Division – Government Fleet Honored the Four Elite Fleets in the Nation Including the City of Troy, MI to Sam Lamerato, Fleet Superintendent, and the DPW Fleet Team (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-5 Trails and Pathways Update (Presented by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager)
	C-6 Building Department Activity Update (Presented by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development, and Paul Featherston, SafeBuilt)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Historic District Commission, Parks and Recreation Board, Personnel Board, Traffic Committee
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic District Commission, Traffic Committee, Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-3 No Closed Session Requested

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 8, 2015

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Carpet Replacement – Police Department and Budget Amendment

	J-5 City of Troy FOIA Policy Amendments – Effective July 1, 2015
	J-6 2015 Annual Budget Amendments
	J-7 Terrell Bishop v City of Troy, et. al. Lawsuit
	J-8 Dandu and Moustan v City of Troy, et. al. Lawsuit
	J-9 Ledell Hammond v City of Troy, et. al. Lawsuit
	J-10 Exempt Classification Plan Update

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Retiree Healthcare Benefits Plan & Trust Minutes-Final – February 11, 2015
	b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes-Final – March 11, 2015
	c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – May 6, 2015
	d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes-Final – May 13, 2015
	e) Traffic Committee Minutes-Final – May 13, 2015
	f) Planning Commission Minutes-Final – May 26, 2015

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Troy Public Library Chosen as Part of MCLA Library Match Project
	b) Building Department Activity Report – May, 2015
	c) SHARP (Senior Home Assistance Repair Program) Annual Report

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Chief Gary Mayer from Bob Gornowich Regarding Sgt. Scott Smith and Sgt. Andy Breidenich
	b) To Chief Gary Mayer from Jessica R. Cooper, Oakland County Attorney Regarding Detectives Mork, Schuler and Wolfe

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:

	20150713 Agenda - J-04a  SPR4 Cooperative Contract Award - Two (2) DumpTrucks with Snow Removal and Deicing Systems
	20150713 Agenda - K-01a  Announcement of PH July 20, 2015 - Rezoning Application (File Number Z 746) - Proposed Fire Station No. 4
	PC 2015 06 23 Fire digital.pdf
	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES
	June 9, 2015

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT
	5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT
	6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT
	7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
	8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 998)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	9. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 247)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Zoning Ordinance Draft Text 
	Map of potential oil and gas sites

	10. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 746)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps
	Master Plan Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report
	Concept Drawing

	11. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 013)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Maps
	Master Plan Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report for Original Rezoning Application

	12. PUBLIC COMMENT
	13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT


	20150713 Agenda - K-01b  Announcement of PH - July 20, 2015 - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment - File Number ZOTA 247 - Oil and Gas Extraction
	20150713 Agenda - K-02a Timeline for Library Millage Question, November 3, 2015 City General Election
	20150713 Agenda - P-01a  Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft - June 3, 2015
	20150713 Agenda - P-01b  Building Code Board of Appeals-Final - June 3, 2015
	20150713 Agenda - P-01c  Planning Commission-Final - June 9, 2015
	20150713 Agenda - P-01d  Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft - July 1, 2015
	20150713 Agenda - P-02a  Building Department Activity Report - June, 2015
	20150713 Agenda - P-02b  Great Lake Water Authority Update
	20150713 Agenda - P-02b  Great Lake Water Authority Update
	MOU Formation of GLWA 9 9 14

	20150713 Agenda - P-02c  2015 Third Quarter Litigation Report
	20150713 Agenda - P-03a  LoA to Kurt Bovensiep and the DPW Staff From the Schoenherr Family RE Staff Rescuing a Mallard Duck Family
	20150713 Agenda - P-03b  LoA to Chief Mayer from Stephanie Bergeron, President, at Walsh College.'pdf
	20150713 Agenda - P-05  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of DTE Case No U-17772
	20150713 Agenda - P-06  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Case No U-17868


